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Hungary Internet: kpmg.hu

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholder of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. and its
subsidiaries (“‘the Group™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of (or ‘present fairly, in
all material respects,’) the consolidated financial position of Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. as at 31 December
2011, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Budapest, 27 April 2012

KPMG Hungdria Kft.

s

AU
Robert Stﬁifinger
Partner
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RAIFFEISEN BANK Zrt.
Consolidated income statement

(HUF million) For the year ended 31 December 2011
Note 2011 2010
Interest and similar income &) 148,168 152,590
- cash and cash equivalents 3,664 2,583
- on placements with banks 940 703
- on loans to non-banks 116,742 124,692
- on securities 24,419 21,597
- from leases 2,403 3,015
Interest expenses and similar charges (6) 89,688 82,110
- on borrowings from banks 18,716 17,678
- on deposits from non-banks 59,671 53,864
- on debt securities issued 9,531 9,080
- on subordinated labilities 1,770 1,488
Net interest income 58,480 70,480
Fee and commission income 29,232 29,702
Fee and commission expense 8,183 8.823
Net fee and commission income (7) 21,049 20,879
Dividend income 29 27
Net trading income & 5,429 11,314
Net income from derivatives held for risk management 37,030 25,007
Other operating income ) 4,354 8,258
Operating income 46,842 44,606
Impairment losses (10) 105,862 57,618
Salaries and staff benefits (11 28,322 31,595
Rental expenses 7,801 7,792
Equipment expenses 6,320 6,335
Other operating expenses %) 69,852 39,717
Operating expenses 112,295 85,439
Share of profits of associates 9 0
Profit/(loss) before tax (91,795) (7,092)
Income tax expense (12) 185 146
Deferred tax (12) (3,098) (1,637)
Profit/(loss) for the period (88,882) (5,601)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (84,955) (1,487)

Non controlling interest (3,927) (4,114)
A /

The accom:

nyingiqjotes (on pages 11 to 88) form an integral part of thejﬁ}/consolidated financial statements.
X ] zg ‘4 L ‘e

Y,

Horvath Krisztina Maté Norbert
Chief Financial Officer Head of Accounting Department

Date: 27 April 2012



RAIFFEISEN BANK Zrt.
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(HUF million) For the vear ended 31 December 2011
911 2010
Profit / (loss) for the period (88,882) (3,601)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets (13.851) 3,591
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets transferred to profit or loss 656 0
Income tax on other comprehensive income/(loss) 2,548 642
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period, net of income tax (10,647) (2,949)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (99,529) (8,550)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:

e

Equity holders of the Bank (95,602) (4,436)

Non-controlling interest (3,927) (4,114)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (99,529) (8,550)
The accompanying notes (on pages 11 to 88) form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

| L

Horvath Krisztina Maté Norbert
Chief Financial Officer Head of Accounting Department

Date: 27 April 2012



Raiffeisen Bank Zrt,
Consolidated statement of financial position

(HUF million) As at 31 December 2011
Note 2011 2010
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (14) 98,285 59,149
Placements with banks (15) 99,777 82,575
Net loans (16) 1,526,238 1,614,820
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss a7 70,168 65,397
Available for sale securities (18) 253,408 296,953
Held to maturity securities (18) 143,186 143,989
Investments in associated undertakings 142 48
Investments in unlisted securities 120 108
Property, plant and equipment (20) 21,021 19,555
Investment property (20) 147 1,252
Intangible assets 2n 15,332 14,332
Goodwill 22) 1,672 1,672
Current tax assets 539 1,827
Deferred tax assets (36) 8,639 3,069
Other assets (24) 47,478 48,211
Assets classified as held for sale (32) 14,119 14,951
Total assets 2,300,271 2,367,908
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposits from banks (26) 318,070 530,406
Deposits from non-banks @27 1,434,538 1,323,697
Debt securities issued (28) 126,322 146,307
Subordinated liabilities 29) 59,480 53,617
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (25) 122,888 84,308
Current tax liabilities 116 0
Deferred tax liabilities (36) 120 181
Provisions €20 20,909 8,878
Other liabilities 30) 56,768 68,828
Liabilities classified as held for sale (32) 156 170
Total liabilities 2,139,367 2,216,392
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 162,400 151,264
Ordinary shares 165,023 59,099
Preference shares 0 0
Share capital (33) 165,023 59,099
Retained earnings 12,864 77,964
Statutory reserves (34) 0 18,864
Non-distributable reserve 323 500
Fair value reserve (15,810) (5,163)
Non controlling interest (1,496) 252
Total equity 160,904 151,516
Total liabilities, non controlling interest and shareholder's
equity 2,300,271 2,367,908

The accoinpé;)ying r?otps (on pages 11 to 88) form an mte%i'ﬂ part of these consolidated financial statements.

; g\g,/

..... L
Horvath Krisztina Maté Norbert
Chief Financial Officer Head of Accounting Department

Date: 27 April 2012
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Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Consolidated statement of cash flows

(HUF million) For the year ended 31 December 2011
Note 011 201
Profit/(loss) for the period (88,882) (5,601)

Cash flows from operating activites

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation (20,21 10,545 7,917
Net impairment loss on non-financial assets (16) 2,713 357
Net impairment losses and write-offs on financial assets (16) 98,887 37,202
Net interest income &) (58.480) (70,481)
Disposal of assets 197 54
Other (113) (465)
Income tax expense (12) (2,913) (1,491)
50,836 (26,907)
Change in placements with banks (15) (17,203) (46,858)
Change in loans and advances to customers (16) (10,305) (68,014)
Change in derivative financial instruments amn 26,225 38,998
Change in AFS securities (without revaluation) (18) 32,871 (60,365)
Change in other assets and asset held for sale (24,32 1,543 (12,497)
Change in deposits from banks (26) (212,336) (132,337
Change in deposits from non-banks 27) 110,841 15,419
Change in other liabilities, provisions and liabilities held
for sale (30,31,32) (41 25,683
(68,405) (239,971)
Interest and dividends received 148,196 152,618
Interest paid (89,687) (82,109
Income tax paid (1,315) (317)
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities (49,257) (202,487)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of securities (18) (34,219) (39,751)
Disposals of securities (18) 42,607 51,193
Purchase of investment in associates (2,767) 0
Disposal of investment in associates 0 585
Purchase of equity investments (12) (69)
Disposal of equity investments 0 0
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (20) (7.132) (2,016)
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 20) 1,341 56,736
Purchase of intangible assets (21,22) (6,323) 4,31
Disposals of intangible assets (21,22) 18 244
Net cash used in investing activities (6,487) 62,611




Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Consolidated statement of cash flows
(HUF million) For the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 010

Cash flows from financing activities

Increase in issued debt securities (28) 53,907 95,637
Repayment of debt securities (28) (73,891) (33,991
Increase in subordinated liabilities 29 5,863 1,511
Issuance of new shares and proceeds from share premium (33 106,616 11,644
Dividend paid 0 0
Net cash from financing activites 92,495 74,801
Net increase/decrease of cash and cash equivalents 36,751 (65,075)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 59,149 120,668
Net effect of exhange rate 2,385 3,556
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 98,285 59,149

The ag%onlpar;yixgg notes (on pages 11 to 88) form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

¢ ¢

Horvath Krisztina Maté Norbert
Chief Financial Officer Head of Accounting Department

Date: 27 April 2012
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Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(1)

2
(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

General information

Raiffeisen Bank Zrt. (,the Bank”) commenced its m@i®ns in 1987 as a commercial bank domiciled in
Hungary. The Bank’s registered office is 1054 BugkipAkadémia Street 6.

The Bank holds a full commercial banking licensaied by the Hungarian Financial Supervisory Autlori
and carries on a wide range of financial activitiese consolidated financial statements of the Baslat
and for the year ended 31 December 2011 comprisBdink and its subsidiaries (together referredsttha
“Group”). For further information on consolidategbsidiaries please see Note 41).

The Bank is controlled by Raiffeisen-RBHU HoldingmBH. The ultimate parent of the Group is
Raiffeisen-Landesbanken-Holding GmbH.

Basis of presentation
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Grbape been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘'IFRSs’).

IFRSs comprise accounting standards issued by ASB land its predecessor body and interpretations
issued by the International Financial Reportingedptetations Committee (‘IFRIC’) and its predecesso
body.

These financial statements were authorized foeissuthe Board of Directors on 27 April 2012.
Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped on the historical cost basis except for the
following:

« derivative financial instruments are measurediatwflue;

« financial instruments at fair value through prafitloss are measured at fair value;

* available-for-sale assets are measured at faieyalu

» assets and liabilities that are hedged are statidr aalue in respect of the risk that is hedged,;

« other financial assets and liabilities and non+iitial assets and liabilities are stated at amattise
cost or historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements requiresagament to make judgments, estimates and assursptio
that affect the application of accounting policéexl the reported amounts of assets, liabilitiesprme and
expenses. Actual results may differ from thesaresdgs.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewegnoongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estisat
are recognized in the period in which the estingtevised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant aredsestimation uncertainty and critical judgmentspplying

accounting policies that have the most signifiefect on the amount recognized in the financiaeshents
are described in Note 38.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are predentHungarian Forints, which is the Bank’s fuantl

currency. Except as indicated, financial informatis presented in Hungarian Forints rounded tont#aest
million.

Changes in accounting policies

Starting as of 1 January 2011, the Group has clikitgaccounting policies in the following areas:

11



Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Revised IAS 24 Related Party Disclosuréeffective for annual periods beginning on or mfteJanuary
2011):

The amendment exempts government-related entity fiee disclosure requirements in relation to relate
party transactions and outstanding balances, imgutcbmmitments, with

« agovernment that has control, joint control ongigant influence over the reporting entity;

* and another entity that is a related party becttusesame government has control, joint control or
significant influence over both the reporting enténd the other entity. The revised Standard
requires specific disclosures to be provided éporting entity takes advantage of this exemption.

The revised Standard also amends the definitioa oflated party which resulted in new relationspei
included in the definition, such as, associateth@fcontrolling shareholder and entities contrqladointly
controlled, by key management personnel.

Revised IAS 24 is not relevant to the Group’s fitiahstatements as the Group is not a governméaiere
entity and the revised definition of a related palid not result in new relations requiring diselcs in the
financial statements.

(3) Significant accounting policies

@)

(b)

Accounting policies are the specific principlessés conventions, rules and practices adoptedeb@tbup
in preparing and presenting financial statementise Rccounting policies set out below have been
consistently applied to all the periods preserded, by Group entities.

Financial statement presentation

These consolidated financial statements includeatoeunts of the Bank and its subsidiaries andcestes
(“the Group”). The income, expenses, assets abditias of the subsidiaries are included in theprective
line items in the consolidated financial statemerafter eliminating inter-company balances and
transactions.

Basis of consolidation
i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the GrdDpntrol exists when the Group has the power, dirext
indirectly, to govern the financial and operatingligies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fridm
activities. The existence and effect of potentiing rights that are currently exercisable or aotible are
considered when assessing whether the Group csritrelentity. The financial statements of subsigsar
are consolidated from the date that control memces until the date that control ceases. Thehpse
method of accounting is used to account for theuiaittpn of subsidiaries by the Bank. The cost of a
acquisition is measured at the fair value of thesaderation given at the date of exchange, togetlir
costs directly attributable to that acquisition.eTacquired identifiable assets, liabilities and towent
liabilities are measured at fair value at the ddtacquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisitover the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifialagsets, liabilities and contingent liabilities aitgd is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisitionléss than the fair value of the Group’s sharehef t
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingenbliigies of the business acquired, the differereceeicognised
immediately in the income statement, after reagsggbe identification and measurement of the asset
acquired.

i) Special purpose entities

Special purpose entities are entities that aretete® accomplish a narrow and well-defined objectuch
as the execution of a specific borrowing or lendiragnsaction. The financial statements of spediappse
entities are included in the Group’s consolidatetaricial statements if, based on an evaluationhef t
substance of their relationship with the Group #maentity’s risks and rewards, the Group conclutiasit
controls the entity.

12



Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(©)

(d)

iii) Funds management

The Group manages and administers assets heldéstment funds on behalf of investors. The findncia
statements of these investment funds are not irdiud these consolidated financial statements, pExce
when the Group controls the investment funds. mfation about the Group’s funds management activitie
is set out in Note 42.

iv) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances, and any realized and uneshlincome and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing constdififinancial statements. Unrealized losses amaimdited
in the same way as unrealized gains, but onlydcettient that there is no evidence of impairment.

v) Loss of control

The Group applies consistently the book value actiog method to all similar common control
transactions when recognising the assets aquiredliahilities assumed in the consolidated financial
statements. In applying book value accounting negthioe result of the common control transactions is
recognised in equity.

Investments in associates

Associates are entities over which the Group hgsifgtant influence, but which it does not control,
generally evidenced by a shareholding of betweé&ha 26d 50% of the voting rights.

Associates are accounted for under the equity netfi@ccounting except when the investment is aedui
and held exclusively with a view to its disposatlie near future, in which case it is measureti@iawer
of its carrying amount and fair value less costseih

Under the equity method, the investment is injiaicorded at cost and the carrying amount is aseé or
decreased to recognize the Group’s share of tHésoo losses of the investee after the date gigsition.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive incmflects these changes in the results but the post-
acquisition changes in the associate’s reserveseaognized directly in the Group’s consolidatestesnent

of changes in equity. When the Group’s share afdesn an associate equals or exceeds its infardst
associate, including any other unsecured receisatthe Group does not recognize further lossegsant

has incurred obligations or made payments on beliaife associate.

Profits on transactions between the Bank and #s@ates are eliminated to the extent of the Baimit&yest
in the respective associates. Losses are alsonalied to the extent of the Bank’s interest in thgoaiates
unless the transaction provides evidence of aninmgat of the asset transferred.

A list of the Group’s significant associated comiparis set out in Note 41.

Foreign currency transactions

Items included in the financial statements of eafctihe Group’s entities are measured using thescasr of
the primary economic environment in which the entiperates (‘the functional currency’).

Transactions in foreign currencies are translabetheé respective functional currencies of Grouptiestat
exchange rates at the dates of the transactionsefdy assets and liabilities denominated in fareig
currencies at the reporting date are retranslatéioet functional currency at the exchange ratbatdate.

The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary itdmshe difference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the periadjusted for effective interest and payments dutire
period, and the amortised cost in foreign curremagslated at the exchange rate at the end ofdéhed
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominatetbirign currencies that are measured at fair vahee
retranslated to the functional currency at the arge rate at the date that the fair value was miated.
Foreign currency differences arising on retransfatire recognised in profit or loss, except fofedénces
arising on the retranslation of available-for-saquity instruments, which are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetaretaswithout physical substance held for the suply
services or for administration purposes.

i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on business combinations, includhmg acquisition of subsidiaries, and on the adtjis
of interests in associates, when the cost of aitipuisexceeds the fair value of the Group’s shar¢he
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingenbiidies acquired. If the Group’s interest in trerfvalue of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingkathilities of an acquired business is greatentti@ cost of
acquisition, the excess is recognised immediatetiré income statement.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impmit losses. The carrying amount of goodwill is
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whetthere is any indication of impairment. If any buc
indication exists then the goodwill's recoverabieoaint is estimated. An impairment loss is recoghie
the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its recabér amount. Impairment losses recognized for gdbdw
are charged to profit or loss and are not reveirsedsubsequent period.

Goodwill on acquisitions of interests in associasdscluded in ‘Investments in associates’.

i) Intangible assets other than goodwiill

Intangible assets that have a finite useful life mreasured initially at cost and subsequently edrat cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accuetliatpairment losses.

Other intangible assets are amortised using thaghtrline method over their estimated useful lifet
exceeding 5 years from the date when the assetaitable for use. The amortisation shall ceasehat t
earlier of the date that the asset is classifileds for sale (or included in a disposal group th@lassified

as held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5, ared dhte that the asset is derecognized. Amortisation
methods and useful lives are reviewed at eachdinbpearend and adjusted if appropriate.

Personnel expenses incurred during establishinglléotual property are capitalized and amortised.
Subsequent other expenditure is capitalised onlgrwihincreases the future economic benefits endubiti
the specific asset to which it relates. All othep@enditures are recognised in profit or loss aarired.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

i. Owner occupied property

Iltems of property, plant and equipment, includiegdehold improvements, are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly aiteble to the acquisition of the asset. Cost ofisaiance
and repairs are recognised in profit or loss aarmecl. Major improvements of an item of propertiarp
and equipment are recognised in the carrying amolitite item if it is probable that the future eoamic
benefits embodied within the part will flow to tloup and its cost can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is allocated over the estimated uskfiilof the asset using the straight-line method &
included in “Other operating expenses” line in thasolidated income statement.

The estimated useful lives of individual categonésassets are as follows:

Properties (Freehol 50 year
Properties (Leaseho 17 year
Equipmen 3to 7 year

Freehold land is not depreciated.
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(@

(h)

()

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualeslare reviewed at each financial year-end andstad)
if appropriate. Items of property, plant and equéntnare subject to an impairment review if theearents
or changes in circumstances which indicate that#ngying amount may not be recoverable.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of propptant and equipment are determined by compalieg t
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amounprafperty, plant and equipment, and are recognigéd n
within “Other operating income” in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment property is property held (by the owmeby a lessee under financial lease) to earn Iseatgor
capital appreciation or both. The Group applies cosdel as valuation method for investment property
The Group uses straight line depreciation, anduieful lives of the properties are 20 years. Faiue of
investment properties is disclosed according to KXS It is determined by independent experts and is
reviewed quarterly. The fair value is supportedriarket evidence. (See Note 20).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes notes and ooifgnd, unrestricted balances held with centrak®a
and highly liquid financial assets with original tmaties of less than three months, which are silte
insignificant risk of changes in their fair valsnd are used by the Group in the management shds-
term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amoxtizsdn the balance sheet.
Determination of fair value

A number of the Group’s accounting policies anccldisures require the determination of fair value fo
financial assets and liabilities. Fair value isetletined for measurement and / or disclosure pugbased
on the following methods.

All financial instruments are recognised initially fair value plus any directly attributable tractgan costs
(except for financial instruments at fair valueailngh profit or loss where transaction costs arertakrectly
to profit or loss). In the normal course of busiethe fair value of a financial instrument on iadit
recognition is the transaction price (that is, fdie value of the consideration given or received).

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair valddinancial instruments that are quoted in activarkets are
measured at fair value based on bid prices fortadseld and ask prices for liabilities issued. When
independent prices are not available, fair valudeiermined by using valuation techniques whiclerréd
observable market data. These include comparistimsivnilar instruments where observable marketgsric
exist, discounted cash flow analysis, option pdcimodels and other valuation techniques commondyg us
by market participants. For financial instrumerigs; value may be determined in whole or in patihgs
valuation techniques based on assumptions thatcareupported by prices from current market tratisas

or observable market data. Determination of falueas more detailed in Note 39.

Recognition of financial instruments

The Group initially recognises loans and advanaEposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date at which they are origimht®egular way purchases and sales of financigtasse
recognised on the trade date at which the Groupngtarto purchase or sell the asset. All other faialn
assets and liabilities (including assets and ligdsl at fair value through profit or loss) are tiaiy
recognised on the trade date at which the Grouprbes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Placements with banks and Loans and advances to ¢omers
Placements with banks and Loans and advances tonoeiss include loans and advances with fixed or
determinable payments which were originated byGheup, or result for providing money or servicesato

debtor other than those created with the intentibshort-term profit making and which are not cifsd
either as held for trading or designated at faiu@ahrough profit or loss.
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Loans and advances are recognised when cash isi@tldao borrowers (settlement date). They are
derecognised when either borrowers repay theirgabtins, or the loans are sold or written off, or
substantially all the risks and rewards of owngrsaie transferred. Loans and advances are initially
measured at fair value plus any incremental ditr@ctsaction costs, and are subsequently measuthdiat
amortized cost using effective interest method; legpairment losses.

(k) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fairvalue through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities at faalue through profit or loss are those that the upro
principally holds for the purpose of short-termfirmaking (held for trading). These include setias and
derivative contracts.

These assets and liabilities are initially recogdisand subsequently measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position withnsaction costs taken directly to profit or logd.
changes in fair value are recognised as part of tideing income” in profit or loss.

() Investments in securities
Investments in securities include held-to-matuaityl available-for-sale securities.
i) Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative fioel assets with fixed or determinable paymentd an
fixed maturities that the Group’s management hagtbsitive intention and ability to hold to matwriThis
category mainly include government bonds.

Held-to-maturity securities are initially recogrdsat fair value plus any directly attributable saaotion
costs and subsequently carried at amortised costeostatement of financial position, less any impant
losses. Premiums are amortised and discounts avenatated against net profit using the effectivieriest
method.

i) Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale financial assets are those nerivdtive financial assets that are not classiisdoans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments oaricial assets at fair value through profit or |ddsese
financial assets are mainly corporate and munidpalds, units in investment funds, government bamds
treasury bills.

Available-for-sale securities are recognised orddralate, when the Group enters into contractual
arrangements with counterparties to purchase dmsjrand are normally derecognised when either the
securities are sold or the borrowers repay thdigations.

Available-for-sale securities are initially measlia fair value plus direct transaction costs. gbsnt to
initial recognition, they are measured at fair waland changes therein are recognised in other
comprehensive income and presented within equithénfair value reserve until the securities atbegi
sold or impaired. When available-for-sale secuwsitigre sold, cumulative gains or losses in other
comprehensive income are transferred to profibss.|

(m) Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments include forwardd@n exchange contracts, interest rate swaps,afarw
rate agreements, futures and options (both writeth purchased). Derivatives are recognised injtialhd
are subsequently measured at fair value.

Derivative contracts are entered into with the psgof trading, or held for risk management purpdase
order to hedge interest rate and foreign exchaige In addition the Group uses other derivatives,
designated in a qualifying hedge relationship, mage its exposure to foreign currency, interdst aad
equity market risks. The instruments used includerest rate swaps, cross-currency interest raspsw
forward contracts, and options.
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(n)

Trading derivatives are part of the Group’s tradigition and the change in their fair value iduded in
Net trading income.

The Group holds instruments that contain bothlzilitg and equity components and these instrumbate
multiple embedded derivatives whose values arerdefgeendent. These instruments are the following:
structured deposits, structured swaps, structumevairds and structured debt securities. Embedded
derivatives are separated when their economic cteistics and risks are not clearly and closelgtesl to
those of the host contract, the terms of the embedikerivative meet the definition of a stand-alone
derivative, if they were contained in a separatetre@t; and the combined contract is not measuréddira
value. These embedded derivatives are measurediravdlue with changes therein recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Derivatives are classified as assets when thainvélue is positive or as liabilities when theiirfaalue is
negative. Derivative assets and liabilities arisifigm different transactions are only offset if the
transactions are with the same counterparty, d teg# of offset exists, and the parties intendsédtle the
cash flows on a net basis.

The method of recognising fair value gains anddestoes not depend on whether derivatives arefbeld
trading or held for risk management purposes. Aling and losses from changes in the fair value of
derivatives are recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives held ik management as hedging instruments in qualifying
hedging relationship. On initial designation of thedge, the Group formally documents the relatigmsh
between the hedging instrument(s) and the hedged(s), including the risk management objective and
strategy in undertaking the hedge, together wiehrttethod that will be used to assess the effects®of
the hedging relationship. The Group makes an asssgsboth at the inception of the hedging relatiop

as well as on an ongoing basis, as to whethereatgihg instruments are expected to be highly effeéh
offsetting the changes in the fair value of thepeesive hedged item during the period for which liedge

is designated, and whether the actual resultsa¥f adge are within a range of 80-125 percent.

Fair value hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedginguimg&nt in a hedge of the change in fair value of a
recognized asset or liability that could affectfiirand loss, changes in the fair value of the d#ive are
recognized immediately in profit and loss togetivéh changes in the fair value of the hedged itbat aire
attributable to the hedged risk (in the same lieeniin the statement of comprehensive income as the
hedged item)..

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terated, or exercised, or the hedge no longer méets t
criteria for fair value hedge accounting, or theldee designation is revoked, then hedge accounsing i
discontinued prospectively. Any adjustment up iat thoint to a hedge item for which the effectiveerast
method is used, is amortised to profit and lospas of the recalculated effective interest ratehef item
over its remaining lifetime.

The Group hedges fixed rate loans, fixed rate fuads and structured issued bonds in fair vahagyés.
Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group assessesewligtre is objective evidence that financial &seet
carried at fair value through profit or loss arepaited. Financial assets are impaired when obgctiv
evidence demonstrates that a loss event has odcaifter the initial recognition of the asset, ahdttthe
loss event has an impact on the future cash fldwisecasset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are ingplatan include default or delinquency by a borrower
restructuring of a loan or advance by the Groupesms that the Group would not otherwise consider,
indications that a borrower or issuer will entenkmaptcy, the disappearance of an active marketafor
security, or other observable data relating tocaugrof assets such as adverse changes in the pastatrs

of borrowers or issuers in the group, or econoroiwditions that correlate with defaults in the Group
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i) Impairment of Placements with banks and Loans and @ances to customers

Impairment allowances are calculated on individioains and assessed collectively on groups of loans.
Losses expected from future events are not recednis

Individually assessed loans and advances

For all loans that are considered individually gigant, the Group assesses, on a case-by-casg hasiach
balance sheet date, whether there is any objeetiigence that a loan is impaired. Impairment logsses
loans carried at amortised cost are measured afiffaeence between the carrying amount of therfaial
assets and the present value of estimated futwslke flaws discounted at the assets’ original effecti
interest rate. Losses are recognised in profibses nd reflected in an allowance account agaiasisl and
advances. Interest on the impaired assets conttoussrecognised through the unwinding of discount

Collectively assessed loans and advances

The Group uses not only individually but also palitf based loan loss provision for impairment.
Impairment that cannot be identified on an indidbioan basis may still be identifiable on a pditfdasis.
Hence, all accounts without objectively significaatidence of loss are included in a group of simila
financial assets for the collective assessments lpyevisions are based on previous loss experiérce
assets with similar credit risk characteristicsofarct, asset type, customer type, collateral tygades
channel type, past-due status, etc.) with condideraf the current portfolio performance. Accouthst
are individually assessed for impairment and idieatias impaired are excluded from a portfolio asagent
of impairment.

Changes in estimates regarding the portfolio-basegbairment of loans and advances

The Group has implemented some changes to itsofiortbased loan loss provisioning policy as a
consequence of the economic slowdown. In the chrereretail portfolio based loan loss provisionitige
Bank applies a model determined on RBI group levdl.the end of 2010 RBI (Raiffeisen Bank
International) harmonized the provisioning modettte entire international bank group. The averdgh®
last five years’ default rates is used; in paraliigfault rates for each sectors are not diffeedad; in case
of the internal rating categories there is no smiogt and the loss given default is determined 8h gtoup
level.

The Group has re-estimated the expected recovefige retail and SME mortgage portfolios consideri
the effect of the economic crisis and the unfavierétends of the real estate market. Thereforergbevery
rates have been reduced in portfolio based pravisipmodels. Simultaneously, the minimal provisiates
used in individual provisioning have increased dgitihe year in the SME segment causing HUF 4l@il
one-off increase in provision.

In line with the RBI Group Accounting regulations the end of financial year 2011 the Group has
introduced in its financial reporting the applicatiof credit conversion factors concerning thebaffance
sheet items’ portfolio-based loan loss provisionilige implementation of these credit conversiondiac
(based on the corresponding capital regulatiorsjulgggered cca HUF 1.1 billion provision releasdhe
Corporate segment as a one-off effect.

Write-off of loans and advances

A loan (and the related impairment allowance actoisnnormally written off, either partially or ifull,

when there is no realistic prospect of recoveryhef principal amount and, for a collateralised |oahen

the proceeds from realising the security have beegived.

Reversals of impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases sulassequent period, and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impannwas recognised, the excess is written back by

reducing the loan impairment allowance account @bogly. The write back is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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(0)

Assets acquired in exchange for loans

The Group has the right to liquidate collateralizedl estate where the Group has a registered agetdy
court enforcement as well as omitting court enforest, in the scope of sales proceedings carriedrmdgr
the Group’s own right. The real estate may alsguigect to constrained sale where the owner ofd¢hé
estate is a business association under liquidation.

If the Group has a purchase option on real estaeGroup’s claim may be enforced. The Group igledt
to buy the real estate at the purchase price ditedmn the option agreement, and set the purchese
against its claim, or assign a third party to eiser¢che purchase option, and set the purchase paiceby
such third party against its claim.

Assets acquired in exchange for loans and leasesmination of a contract are held at a valueldistzed
by an external (technical) appraiser. Until theetsscquired from lease contracts are sold, paviss
allocated to the receivables, then the amount adivables is reduced by the sales revenue of thetsaas
The provision recognized on loans is affectedigydannual loss-rate of the assets sold in currest gnd
on the future prospects of sales.

Provision is disclosed in the balance sheet unalegntory, the charge of provisions is accountedaf®r
other expenses, the release of provision is diedlas other income.

i) Impairment of held-to-maturity securities

Impairment losses on held-to-maturity securitiee areasured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the present vaflwstimated future cash flows discounted at $sets
original effective interest rate. Losses are recgeghin profit or loss. When a subsequent evensesithe
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decindasgairment loss is reversed through profitasd.

iii) Impairment of available-for-sale securities

Investments in available-for-sale securities anesered to be impaired if their carrying amoungrieater
than the estimated recoverable amount assessadlabalance sheet date on the basis of objectidere
such as significant financial difficulty of the iss, actual breaches of contracts, high probabaity
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization of tbguer. Impairment losses on available-for-sateisges
are recognised by transferring the cumulative tbas has been recognised in other comprehensieenac
and presented in the fair value reserve in eqtotyrofit or loss. The cumulative loss that is rend from
other comprehensive income and recognised in poofibss is the difference between the acquisitiost,
net of any principal repayment and amortisationd #ime current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss. Changednipairment provisions attributable to time value a
reflected as a component of interest income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of apaired available-for-sale debt security increases the
increase can be related objectively to an eventiroiog after the impairment loss was recognisegrifit
or loss, then the impairment loss is reversed, withamount of the reversal recognised in profitoss.
However, any subsequent recovery in the fair valuan impaired available-for-sale equity instrument
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial asset, whemrah&actual rights to the cash flows from the ficiah
asset expire, or when it transfers the rights teike the contractual cash flows on the financésleain a
transaction in which substantially all the risk ardvards of ownership of the financial asset aandferred.
Any interest in transferred financial assets tlsacieated or retained by the Group is recognizea as
separate asset or liability.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it fexasassets recognized on its statement of finhncia
position, but retains either all or substantially af the risks and rewards of the transferred &sse a
portion of them. If all or substantially all risksxd rewards are retained, then the transferredsaase not
derecognized from the statement of financial positiTransfers of assets with retention of all or
substantially all risks and rewards include, foamyple, securities lending and repurchase transgactio

19



Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(P)

(@

When assets are sold to a third party with a copatitotal rate of return swap on the transferisskss, the
transaction is accounted for as a secured finartcamgaction similar to repurchase transactions.

In transactions in which the Group neither retaios transfers substantially all the risks and relwasf the
ownership of a financial asset, it derecognizesadset, if it does not retain control over the asdee rights
and obligations retained in the transfer are reizeghseparately as assets and liabilities as apptepin
transfers in which control over the asset is re@jrthe Group continues to recognize the asséietextent
of its continuing involvement, determined by theegt to which it is exposed to changes in the valuine
transferred asset.

In certain transactions the Group retains the alibig to service the transferred financial assetsaffee.
The transferred asset is derecognized in its eyptiiré meets the derecognition criteria. An assetiability
is recognized for the servicing contract, dependingvhether the servicing fee is more adequate{ass
is less than adequate (liability) for performing gervice.

The Group enters into purchases (sales) of sessiithder agreements to resell (repurchase) suiadiiant
identical securities at a certain date in the futat a fixed price. Securities purchased subject to
commitments to resell them at future dates are reobgnized as securities. The amounts paid are
recognized in other assets and shown as collatedaliy the underlying security.

Securities sold under repurchase agreements centmie recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position and are measured in accordarnttetive accounting policy for assets held for tradiThe
proceeds from the sale of the securities are reg@as$ other liabilities.

The difference between the sale and repurchasedewsasons is recognized on an accrual basis dwer t
period of the transaction and is included in irdefiecome or expense, respectively.

Repo transactions combine spot purchase or saecofities with their respective forward sale orcpase,
the counterparty being identical. Securities saldar repurchase agreements (spot sale) appeaarand
measured, in the consolidated statement of finhpoisition as part of the securities portfolio. TihBow of
liquidity from repo transactions is recorded asaaility. The agreed interest payments includingmants
on purchase are booked as interest paid.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability whén gontractual obligations are discharged, candelle
expired.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilites

Financial assets and financial liabilities are effand the net amount reported in the statemefihaficial
position when there is a legally enforceable righbffset the recognised amounts and there is t@mtion
to settle on a net basis, or realise the assesettid the liability simultaneously.

Finance and operating leases

Agreements which transfer to counterparties sukbisthn all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of assets, but not necessarily lega, titte classified as finance leases. The Groug,lassor,
recognizes assets held under a finance leasednnsolidated statement of financial position azrables
(under ‘Placements with banks’ and ‘Loans and adeario customers’ as appropriate) at an amount equa
to the net investment in the lease. The recognitibfinance income is based on a pattern reflecting
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’sineéstment outstanding in respect of the finamzsé.
Lease payments relating to the accounting periedapplied against the gross investment in the lease
reduce both the principal and unearned financenigco

All other leases are classified as operating leaddsen acting as lessor, the Group includes thetass
subject to operating leases in ‘Property, plant aplipment’ and accounts for them accordingly.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extentdisedual values are not fully recoverable andctmeying
value of the equipment is thereby impaired.
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() Deposits, Debt securities issued and Subordinateidbilities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinabilities are the Group’s sources of debt funding.

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordingbdities are initially measured at fair value pldirectly
attributable transaction costs, and subsequenthsored at their amortised cost using the effedtiterest
method.

(s) Provisions for contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a pastnt, the Group has a present legal or constmicti
obligation that can be estimated reliably, andsipiobable that an outflow of economic benefitd v
required to settle the obligation. Provisions agtetmined by discounting the expected future chshsfat

a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assestarof the time value of money and, where appaogri
the risks specific to the liability.

Contingent liabilities, which include commitmentadacertain issued guarantees, and other liabilities
which include pending legal issues and employeeefiish are possible obligations that arise fromtpas
events whose existence will be confirmed only by dtcurrence, or non-occurrence, of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the cohwf the Group.

(t) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that requireGilmup to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specifiedatehils to make payment when due in accordantke thie
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee liabilities are initially recoged at their fair value, and the initial fair walis amortised
over the life of the financial guarantee. The gotga liability is subsequently carried at the higbkthis
amortised amount and the present value of any ¢aggmyment (when a payment under the guarantee has
become probable). Financial guarantees are incladtééh liabilities.

Further details are set out in Note 37.
(u) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial insients except for those classified as held foringadnd
kept in a trading book and derivatives designateditk management purposes are recognised irrésite
income’ and ‘Interest expense’ in the income statenusing the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of caling the amortized cost of a financial asset financial
liability and of allocating the interest income interest expense over the relevant period. Thectfte
interest rate is the rate that exactly discountamased future cash payments and receipts throbgh t
expected life of the financial instrument or, wteggpropriate, a shorter period to the net carryimgunt of
the financial asset or financial liability. The &tfive interest rate is established on initial gggtion of the
financial asset and liability and is not revisebsequently. When calculating the effective interagt, the
Group estimates future cash flows consideringaitm@ctual terms of the financial instrument (fgample,
prepayment options) but not future credit lossdse €alculation includes all amounts paid or reagkive
between parties to the contract that are an int@gra of the effective interest rate, transactosts and all
other premiums or discounts. Transaction costaidiecincremental costs that are directly attrib@dblthe
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or ligil

Interest on impaired financial assets is calculadgdapplying the original effective interest rate the
financial asset to the carrying amount as redugeahly allowance for impairment.

(v) Fee and commission income
Fees and commissions are generally recognized oacamal basis as end when the service has been
provided. Commission and fees arising from negotjiator participating in the negotiation of, a tsantion

for a third party — such as the arrangement ofttwuisition of shares or other securities or thelpase or
sale of businesses — are recognized on completitire ainderlying transaction.
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(w) Net trading income

)

v)

@

Net trading income comprises gains less lossesetkl trading assets and liabilities, and includis
realized and unrealized fair value changes, integdsdends and foreign exchange differences.

Other operating income

Other operating income comprises realised net gaiddosses related to available-for-sale secsrigains
on disposal of inventory, intangible assets angherty, plant and equipment.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right toeree income is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current an@medl tax. Income tax is recognized in the conatdid
income statement, except to the extent that iteslto a business combination, or items recogrigedtly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the calculated tax payable on thxakbke income for the year, using tax rates enaoted
substantively enacted at the reporting date as ageliny adjustments to tax payable in respectefigus
years.

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance simetod, providing for temporary differences betwden
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for ficial reporting purposes and the amounts usedaf@tibn
purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax thegsare expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laatshifive been enacted or substantively enactedeby th
reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to thenéxteat it is probable that future taxable profitdl be
available against which the asset can be utiliBederred tax assets are reviewed at each repattitegand
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer abddthat the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset wii@y arise in the same tax reporting group anateeio
income taxes levied by the same taxation authaaitg, when a legal right to offset exists in thatgnt

Deferred tax relating to fair value re-measurenenavailable-for-sale investments which are charged
credited directly to other comprehensive incom@|se credited or charged directly to other compnsive
income and is subsequently recognised in profitoss when the deferred fair value gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

(aa)Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is méraaiual obligation to transfer cash or other ricial
assets. Incremental costs directly attributabléhtoissue of equity instruments are shown in eqagya
deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

(bb)New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standaaisnterpretations are not yet effective for teary
ended 31 December 2011, and have not been appl@éparing these consolidated financial statements

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Stateents - Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

(Effective for annual periods beginning on or afterJuly 2012, to be applied prospectively, early
application is permitted.)
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The amendments:

e require that an entitiy presents separately thmstef other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future frémose that would never be reclassified to profi an
loss. If items of other comprehensive income aes@nted before related tax then the aggregated
tax amount should be allocated between these ssctod

« change the title of the Statement of Compreherisiseme to the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income however, an entityillafibwed to use other titles.

The impact of the initial application of the amerahts will depend on the specific items of other
comprehensive income at the date of initial appitica

Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftetanuary 2012, earlier application is permitted.)

The 2010 amendment introduces an exception toutrere measurement principles based on the mariner o
recovery in paragraph 52 of IAS 12 for investmembperty measured using the fair value model in
accordance with 1AS 40 by introducing a rebuttgilesumption that the carrying value of the undedyi
assets would be recovered entirely by sale. Managésintention would not be relevant unless the
investment property is depreciable and held withirbusiness model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the asset’s economic beneiitsr the life of the asset. This is the only ins&im which

the presumption can be rebutted.

The amendments are not relevant to the Group’'sifiah statements, since the Group does not have any
investment properties measured using the fair valodel in 1AS 40.

IAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary 2013; to be applied retrospectivelyli&ar
application is permitted.)

The amendment requires actuarial gains and lossbe recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income. The amendment removes the corridor methedqusly applicable to recognising actuarial gains
and losses, and eliminates the ability for entitesecognise all changes in the defined benefigation

and in plan assets in profit or loss, which culserg allowed under the requirements of IAS 19. The
amendment also requires the expected return ongdaets recognised in profit or loss to be caledlat
based on rate used to discount the defined benidfgation

The amendments are not relevant to the entity’anfiral statements, since the entity does not haye a
defined benefit plans.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or atetanuary 2013, early application is permitted.)

IAS 27 (2011) carries forward the existing accoogtand disclosure requirements of IAS 27 (2008) for
separate financial statements, with some minoifications. As well, the existing requirements &4 28
(2008) and IAS 31 for separate financial stateméwatge been incorporated into IAS 27 (2011). The
Standard no longer addresses the principle of cbmind requirements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements, which have bemmied over into IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Group does not expect IFRS 27 to have maieri@dct on the financial statements.

IAS 28 Investments in Associateand Joint Ventures
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftetanuary 2013, early application is permitted.)

There are limited amendments made to IAS 28 (2008):
e Associates and joint ventures held for sale. IEFR$on-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontihue
Operations applies to an investment, or a portibaminvestment, in an associate or a joint venthed

meets the criteria to be classified as held foe.sBbr any retained portion of the investment ties not
been classified as held for sale, the equity meth@ghplied until disposal of the portion held fade. After
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disposal, any retained interest is accounted forgudhe equity method if the retained interest oams to
be an associate or a joint venture.

« Changes in interests held in associates and j@ntures. Previously, IAS 28 (2008) and IAS 31
specified that the cessation of significant infloeror joint control triggered remeasurement of atgined
stake in all cases, even if significant influencasveucceeded by joint control. IAS 28 (2011) noguies
that in such scenarios the retained interest ifimbestment is not remeasured.

The Group does not expect IFRS 28 to have maieri@dct on the financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assetand Financial Liabilities
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary 2014; to be applied retrospectivelylié&ar
application is permitted.)

The Amendments do not introduce new rules for tiifsg financial assets and liabilities; rather trodgrify
the offsetting criteria to address inconsisteniidbeir application.

The Amendments clarify that an entity currently hdsgally enforceable right to set-off if thathigds:
e not contingent on a future event; and
« enforceable both in the normal course of businest ia the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties.

The Group does not expect the Amendments to haw@gract on the financial statements since it duss
apply offsetting to any of its financial assets dimhncial liabilities and it has not entered inmaster
netting agreements.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Fancial Assets
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or afferJuly 2011, to be applied prospectively, earlier
application is permitted.)

The Amendments require disclosure of informaticat #nables users of financial statements:
< to understand the relationship between transfdimaticial assets that are not derecognised in their
entirety and the associated liabilities; and
e to evaluate the nature of, and risks associateth, vifie entity’s continuing involvement in
derecognised financial assets.

The Amendments define “continuing involvement” fahe purposes of applying the disclosure
requirements.

The Group does not expect the amendment to IFRShate material impact on the financial statements,
because of the nature of the Group’s operationgtantypes of financial assets that it holds.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Finarial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftefanuary 2013 and interim periods within thoseuah
periods; to be applied retrospectively.)

The Amendments contain new disclosure requirenfentinancial assets and liabilities that are:
- offset in the statement of financial position; or
* subject to master netting arrangements or simgagements.

The Group does not expect the Amendments to haw@gract on the financial statements since it dugs
apply offsetting to any of its financial assets diméhncial liabilities and it has not entered immaster
netting arrangements.

Additions to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (issuedm 2010
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftetanuary 2015, early application is permitted.)

The 2010 additions to IFRS 9 replace the guidamcéAB 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement, about classification and measurenidimtamcial liabilities and the derecognition ofifincial
assets and financial liabilities.
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The Standard retains almost all of the existinguiegnents from IAS 39 on the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for demgmition of financial assets and financial liabd#i

The Standard requires that the amount of chandmirivalue attributable to changes in the credik of a
financial liability designated at initial recogmiti as fair value through profit or loss, be presérih other
comprehensive income (OCI), with only the remairémgount of the total gain or loss included in grofi
loss. However, if this requirement creates or igga an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, tten
whole fair value change is presented in profit @sl Amounts presented in OCI are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss but may be transfdrwithin equity.

Derivative financial liabilities that are linked tand must be settled by delivery of an unquotedtgqu
instrument whose fair value cannot be reliably mead, are required to be measured at fair valuemund
IFRS 9.

The Group does not expect the amendments to IFRSu@d in 2010 to have material impact on the
financial statements. The classification and measent of the Group’s financial liabilities are mapected

to change under IFRS 9 because of the nature ddtbep’s operations and the types of financial st

it holds.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (issued in 2009)
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftetanuary 2015, earlier application is permitted.)

This Standard replaces the guidance in IAS 39,ri€iiah Instruments: Recognition and Measurementutbo
classification and measurement of financial asSéts. Standard eliminates the existing IAS 39 caiego
of held to maturity, available for sale and loand eaeceivable.

Financial assets will be classified into one of wetegories on initial recognition:
« financial assets measured at amortized cost; or
+ financial assets measured at fair value.

A financial asset is measured at amortized co#fteffollowing two conditions are met: the assethekl
within a business model whose objective is to fadsets in order to collect contractual cash fleawst, its
contractual terms give rise on specified datesaghdlows that are solely payments of principal emerest
on the principal outstanding.

Gains and losses on remeasurement of financiaisassasured at fair value are recognised in poofibss,
except that for an investment in an equity instrnimehich is not held for trading, IFRS 9 provides,
initial recognition, an irrevocable election to geat all fair value changes from the investmenobtimer
comprehensive income (OCI). The election is avélaim an individual share-by-share basis. No amount
recognised in OCI is ever reclassified to profitass at a later date.

The Group does not expect IFRS 9 issued in 200fate material impact on the financial statemente T
classification and measurement of the Group’s firnassets are not expected to change under IFRS 9
because of the nature of the Group’s operationgtantypes of financial assets that it holds.

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 -Mandatory effective date and transitional disclosues

These Amendments change the disclosure and restateaguirements relating to the initial applicatiof
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2009) and IFRS 9 (201

The amended IFRS 7 require to disclose more dedhitsit the effect of the initial application of IEF
when an entity does not restate comparative infooman accordance with the amended requirements of
IFRS 9.

If an entity adopts IFRS 9 on or after 1 Januart®0then it will no longer be required to restate
comparative information for periods prior to theedaf initial application.

If an entity early adopts IFRS 9 in 2012, thenas ka choice either to restate comparative infoomatr to
provide the enhanced disclosures as required bgrttended IFRS 7.

If an entity early adopts IFRS 9 prior to 2012, rtheeither restatement of comparative information no
provision of the enhanced disclosures under thende®IFRS 7 are required.
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It is expected that the Amendments, when initi@pplied, will not have material impact on the Greup
financial statements. The classification and meament of the Group’s financial assets are not erpeo
change under IFRS 9 because of the nature of thepGr operations and the types of financial agbetsit
holds.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements A new single control model
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftefanuary 2013, to be applied retrospectivelynithere
is a change in the control conclusion, early ajggilin is permitted.)

FRS 10 provides a single model to be applied incth#rol analysis for all investees, including Bes that
currently are SPEs in the scope of SIC-12. IFRff@duces new requirements to assess controbiieat
different from the existing requirements in IAS 0D08). Under the new single control model, arestor
controls an investee when (1) it is exposed orrlygds to variable returns from its involvementghnwihe
investee, (2) has the ability to affect those mguthrough its power over that investee and (etiea link
between power and returns.

The new Standard also includes the disclosure meqpaints and the requirements relating to the patipar
of consolidated financial statements. These remerds are carried forward from IAS 27 (2008).

The Group does not expect IFRS 10 to have maier@dct on the financial statements.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangemenets
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftefanuary 2013, to be applied retrospectivelyesitio
transitional provisions, early application is petted.)

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, supersedes and repla&e31, Interest in Joint Ventures. IFRS 11 doeats
introduce substantive changes to the overall defmiof an arrangement subject to joint contrathaligh
the definition of control, and therefore indirecti/joint control, has changed due to IFRS 10.

Under the new Standard, joint arrangements aralelivinto two types, each having its own accounting
model defined as follows:

e ajoint operation is one whereby the jointly adolling parties, known as the joint operators, hegats

to the assets, and obligations for the liabilitresating to the arrangement.

e A joint venture is one whereby the jointly codlirg parties, known as joint venturers, have rigtd
the net assets of the arrangement.

IFRS 11 effectively carves out, from IAS 31 jointigntrolled entities, those cases in which, althotigre

is a separate vehicle for the joint arrangemerdt geparation is ineffective in certain ways. TEhes
arrangements are treated similarly to jointly coliéd assets/operations under IAS 31, and are raildc
joint operations. The remainder of IAS 31 jointlyntrolled entities, now called joint ventures, ateépped
of the free choice of equity accounting or propnéite consolidation; they must now always use thgty
method in its consolidated financial statements.

The Group does not expect IFRS 11 to have maier@dct on the financial statements.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary 2013, to be applied retrospectivelylyea
application is permitted.)

IFRS 12 requires additional disclosures relatingsignificant judgements and assumptions made in
determining the nature of interests in an entitpowangement, interests in subsidiaries, jointrayeaents
and associates and unconsolidated structuredesntiti

The Bank does not expect IFRS 12 to have mateniphct on the financial statements.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
(Effective for annual periods beginning on or aftetanuary 2013, early application is permitted.)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement replaces the fdinevaneasurement guidance contained in individual
IFRSs with a single source of fair value measurgnmrdance. It defines fair value, establishes a
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4
(@)

(b)

framework for measuring fair value and sets outldsure requirements for fair value measuremeRRS|

13 explains ‘how’ to measure fair value when itréguired or permitted by other IFRSs. It does not
introduce new fair value measurements, nor doedirntinate the practicability exceptions to fair wal
measurements that currently exist in certain staizda

The Group does not expect IFRS 13 to have matenjaédct on the financial statements since management
considers the methods and assumptions currently taseneasure the fair value of assets to be cemsist
with IFRS 13.

Financial risk management
Introduction and overview

The Group’s policies for managing interest rategifgn exchange, credit and liquidity risks are egwed
regularly by senior management and the Board add@ars.

Risk management is independent from the businessaCredit risk management of customers with non-
standard products and services is done by the CRidk Management Department, while credit risk
management of customers with standard productsie dy the Retail Risk Management Department.
Individual credit risk analysis, rating, scoringdamonitoring are tasks of the Credit Risk Managemen
Department, while the portfolio based credit riskasurement, market (interest rate, foreign exchange
liquidity) and operational risk analysis is the gmtence of the Integrated Risk Analysis Department.

The Group has exposure to the following risks ffarancial instruments:

a) Market risk

b) Credit risk

¢) Liquidity risk

d) Operational risk

This note presents information about the Group’sosyre to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measurimgraanaging the risks, and the Group’s management of
capital.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a caster or counterparty fails to meet an obligatiomlema
contract. It arises principally from the Group'sidiing, trade finance and leasing business, but fatsn
certain off-balance sheet products such as guasuftgher than financial guarantees), and fromta$rsdd
in the form of debt securities.

Management of credit risk

Lending activity of the Group is determined by thanagement considering the balance between business
and risk aspects, and in compliance with the HuagaBanking Act, other statutory regulations, ahd t
Credit Policy of the Group. Primarily, the Groumugts credits on a cash-flow base which means olaat |
repayment is secured by the predictable cash floivthe customer’s core activity. Occasionally, the
collateral value, or the future revenue of projefitanced, or the rate of return on a portfolio, or
combination of the above mentioned have superigrhasis. Accordingly, credit decisions are basethen
requested amount, maturity, product type, finansiahding, non-financial features and perspecifgabe
customer, and on the collateral.

Credit risk consists mainly of default risk thatsas from business within retail and corporate @usts,
banks and sovereign borrowers. Default risk isrdefias the risk that a customer will not be abl&ulid
contractually agreed financial obligations. Creditk, however, also arise from migration risk,
concentrations of creditors or in credit risks gation techniques and country risk.

Credit risk is the most important risk driver iretGroup as also indicated by internal and regwatapital
requirements. Thus credit risk is analyzed and toomil both on an individual and on a portfolio Basi
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Credit risk management and lending decisions asedan the respective credit risk policies, creidk
manuals and the corresponding tools and procedsiel Wave been developed for this purpose.

The internal credit risk controlling system inclgddifferent types of monitoring measures whichtaglatly
integrated into the workflow that lead from the touser’s initial credit application, to the bank’sedit
approval, and to the repayment of the loan.

The loss arising from credit risk is accounted ligr making individual impairment and portfolio-based
impairment. The latter comprise impairment for fudivs of loans with identical risk profiles thatay be
complied under certain conditions. In the retaiiglon, impairments are built according to prodpettfolio
and past due days.

For credit risk related to loans and advances stocners and banks, impairment is made in the amafunt
expected loss according to Group-wide standardsk Bf loss is deemed to exist if there is objective
evidence that a loan is impaired. Impairment lossul be recognised if the discounted projected
repayment amounts and interest payments are bblwetrrying amount of the loans, taking collatenatis
account. Portfolio-based impairments are calculdiased on valuation models that estimates expected
future cash flows for the loans in the respectivanl portfolio based on loss experience historys i
carried out by considering the economic environment

In 2009 a special portfolio based provisioning roethvas introduced for the mortgage loan portfofitso

as an answer for the financial crisis and for thersening financial situation of the clients, theoGu
introduced new restructuring solutions, delinqueforgcast and early warning system and strengththeed
workout and collection processes. Parallel with thenges in the internal credit risk management
processes, the organization of the Credit Risk Mdament Department also changed. Separation of Risk
Analyst and Risk Manager roles leads to a morect¥fe workflow.

As a reaction to the current crisis, the Groupdasied out integrated provisioning, capital regoient and
profit after tax forecasting and stress-testing ismmnually since 2010. Based on our expectationgife
macroeconomic environment, we assess future defatés using statistical models, and calculater thei
effect on the above quantities. The timeline of filrecast has been expanded to 3 years, we exdhgne
regulatory and economic capital requirements baotlstandalone and consolidated level in the expeated
well as in pessimistic scenarios.

The Group has responded to the financial diffiegltof the customers caused by the financial and rea
economic crisis with restructuring, with the inttmtion of early warning processes and with focusing
the collection and workout activity.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk at the repgrtiate is shown below:
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2011 (HUF million) Placements Loans and Loans and Loans and Investment Other Derivative OFF B/S
with banks advancesto advancesto advances to in d?bt receivables assets exposures
corporate retail clients  Government securities
clients and public
sector
Individually impaired
Minimal risk 0 24 2,720 0 0 0 0 0
Excellent credit standing 0 0 19,782 0 0 0 0 0
Very good credit standing 0 0 16,886 0 0 0 0 1
Good credit standing 0 1,317 19,889 0 0 0 0 3
Average credit standing 0 385 13,294 31 0 0 0 1
Acceptable credit standing 0 7,089 19,734 855 0 0 206 22
Weak credit standing 0 8,881 9,868 256 0 0 2,610 523
Very weak credit standing 0 7,239 9,194 279 0 0 120 654
Doubtful / high default risk 0 77,018 18,092 3,219 0 0 5,268 12,374
Default 827 230,395 139,915 5,623 0 0 1,395 30,090
Unrated 0 738 12,685 456 0 0 0 0
Total gross amount of individually impaired financial assets 827 333,086 282,059 10,719 0 0 9,599 43,668
Total individually impaired allowance for impairnten 661 135,648 94,698 1,744 0 0 6,982 4,984
Total carrying amount of individually impaired fina ncial assets 166 197,438 187,361 8,975 0 0 2,617 38,684
Collectively impaired
Minimal risk 0 0 3,728 0 0 0 0 0
Excellent credit standing 0 0 33,377 0 0 0 0 1
Very good credit standing 0 0 35,796 0 0 0 0 15
Good credit standing 0 22,510 42,846 0 0 0 37,528
Average credit standing 0 66,499 52,188 0 0 0 0 32,844
Acceptable credit standing 0 169,997 49,927 0 102,788 0 0 42,344
Weak credit standing 0 172,097 37,866 0 0 0 0 56,278
Very weak credit standing 0 87,687 31,946 0 0 0 0 9,127
Doubtful / high default risk 0 52,028 54,966 0 0 0 0 10,315
Default 0 68 21,820 0 0 0 0 5
Unrated 0 0 34,249 0 0 0 0 0
Total gross amount of collectively impaired financil assets 0 570,886 398,709 0 102,788 0 0 188,457
Total collectively impaired allowance for impairnten 0 5,344 12,502 0 150 0 0 1,275
Total carrying amount of collectively impaired financial assets 0 565,542 386,207 0 102,638 0 0 187,182
Past due but not impaired
Minimal risk 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Excellent credit standing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Very good credit standing 0 1,349 0 0 0 0 0 0
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2011 (HUF million) Placements Loans and Loans and Loans and Investment Other Derivative OFF B/S
with banks advancesto advancesto advances to in debt receivables assets exposures
corporate retail clients  Government securities
clients and public
sector
Good credit standing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Average credit standing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Acceptable credit standing 0 0 10 25 0 0 0 0
Weak credit standing 0 0 102 142 0 0 0 0
Very weak credit standing 0 0 401 0 0 0 0 0
Doubtful / high default risk 0 199 883 0 0 0 0 0
Default 0 0 480 0 12,179 0 0 0
Unrated 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0
Total carrying amount of past due but not impairedfinancial assets 0 1,548 1,888 167 12,179 0 0 0
Past due comprises:
up to 30 days 0 180 1,649 142 0 0 0 0
31 to 90 days 0 28 51 0 0 0 0 0
91 to 180 days 0 0 97 0 0 0 0 0
181 days to 1 year 0 0 89 0 206 0 0 0
more than 1 year 0 1,340 2 25 11,973 0 0 0
Total carrying amount of past due but not impairedfinancial assets 0 1,548 1,888 167 12,179 0 0 0
Neither past due nor impaired
Minimal risk 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 122
Excellent credit standing 543 7,735 33 0 0 1 3,871 1,410
Very good credit standing 70,515 4,486 96 0 0 148 21,032 9,688
Good credit standing 2,290 71 177 3 3,741 2,020 4,287 22,028
Average credit standing 9,309 26,139 1,178 0 0 42 1,793 39,282
Acceptable credit standing 15,896 6,610 1,624 60,973 245,632 11,621 7,772 79,590
Weak credit standing 1,058 13,484 2,358 7,087 24,246 431 4,669 43,742
Very weak credit standing 0 3,412 3,733 488 8,773 3,732 2,674 16,662
Doubtful / high default risk 0 30,464 3,338 28 0 2,611 2,472 8,241
Default 0 860 905 0 5,816 52 442 18,691
Unrated 0 1,713 117 0 0 224 126 1
Total carrying amount of neither past due nor impared financial
assets 99,611 94,974 13,559 68,579 288,208 20,882 49,138 239,457
Includes receivables with renegotiated terms
Total gross amount 100,438 1,000,494 696,215 79,465 403,175 20,882 58,737 471,582
Total allowance for impairment 661 140,992 107,200 1,744 150 0 6,982 6,259
Total carrying amount 99,777 859,502 589,015 77,721 403,025 20,882 51,755 465,323

30



Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2010 (HUF million) Placements Loans and Loans and Loans and Investment Other Derivative OFF B/S
with banks advances to advancesto advances to in debt receivables assets exposures
corporate retail clients  Government securities
clients and public
sector
Individually impaired
Minimal risk 0 1 5 0 0 0 0 0
Excellent credit standing 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0
Very good credit standing 0 17 32 0 0 0 0 0
Good credit standing 0 1,397 117 0 0 0 0 0
Average credit standing 0 679 123 2 0 0 181 0
Acceptable credit standing 0 8,448 339 38 0 0 0 151
Weak credit standing 0 6,857 325 0 0 0 1,003 174
Very weak credit standing 0 3,657 1,623 19 0 0 247 150
Doubtful / high default risk 0 29,093 8,525 2,839 0 0 4,151 939
Default 767 159,517 86,688 3,838 0 0 358 5,580
Unrated 0 1,358 5,924 443 0 0 0 132
Total gross amount of individually impaired financial assets 767 211,024 103,721 7,179 0 0 5,940 7,126
Total individually impaired allowance for impairnten 614 74,991 50,890 182 0 0 2,500 2,891
Total carrying amount of individually impaired fina ncial assets 153 136,033 52,831 6,997 0 0 3,440 4,235
Collectively impaired
Minimal risk 0 0 17,866 0 0 0 0 0
Excellent credit standing 0 0 64,135 0 0 0 0 1
Very good credit standing 0 0 41,182 0 0 0 0 31
Good credit standing 0 12,694 72,343 0 0 0 0 30,626
Average credit standing 0 39,825 76,675 0 0 0 0 52,797
Acceptable credit standing 0 180,116 65,782 0 10,263 0 0 77,003
Weak credit standing 0 193,097 53,770 0 0 0 0 60,631
Very weak credit standing 0 82,914 63,017 0 0 0 0 22,848
Doubtful / high default risk 0 71,252 79,014 0 0 0 0 4,051
Default 0 10 48,659 0 0 0 0 158
Unrated 0 300 18,698 0 0 0 0 589
Total gross amount of collectively impaired financil assets 0 580,208 601,141 0 10,263 0 0 248,735
Total collectively impaired allowance for impairnten 0 4,722 20,264 0 160 0 0 2,201
Total carrying amount of collectively impaired financial assets 0 575,486 580,877 0 10,103 0 0 246,534
Past due but not impaired
Minimal risk 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Excellent credit standing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Very good credit standing 0 79 0 0 0 0 0 0
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2010 (HUF million) Placements Loans and Loans and Loans and Investment Other Derivative OFF B/S
with banks advances to advancesto advances to in debt receivables assets exposures
corporate retail clients  Government securities
clients and public
sector
Good credit standing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Average credit standing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Acceptable credit standing 0 74 0 36 0 0 0 0
Weak credit standing 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0
Very weak credit standing 0 0 52 0 0 0 0 0
Doubtful / high default risk 0 13 0 0 0 0 0 0
Default 0 0 246 0 11,491 0 0 0
Unrated 0 0 49 0 0 0 0 0
Total carrying amount of past due but not impairedfinancial assets 0 166 359 36 11,491 0 0 0
Past due comprises:
up to 30 days 0 87 234 0 11,491 0 0 0
31 to 90 days 0 0 35 0 0 0 0 0
91 to 180 days 0 79 30 36 0 0 0 0
181 days to 1 year 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 0
more than 1 year 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0
Total carrying amount of past due but not impairedfinancial assets 0 166 359 36 11,491 0 0 0
Neither past due nor impaired
Minimal risk 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
Excellent credit standing 0 7,065 37 0 781 2 5,087 71
Very good credit standing 57,763 5,133 130 0 997 164 15,641 15,418
Good credit standing 274 2,617 434 0 20,480 2,478 2,811 16,885
Average credit standing 7,424 23,353 770 0 27,979 144 984 29,323
Acceptable credit standing 15,953 52,001 590 51,917 372,518 25,719 4,923 60,386
Weak credit standing 1,008 22,746 396 1,222 7,482 353 5,663 27,438
Very weak credit standing 0 13,409 532 308 0 4,236 3,393 17,210
Doubtful / high default risk 0 49,177 95 0 0 860 1,667 6,325
Default 0 317 315 0 1,051 121 18 5,309
Unrated 0 20,133 9,338 0 0 554 255 2,774
Total carrying amount of neither past due nor impared financial
assets 82,422 195,951 12,637 53,447 431,288 34,631 40,442 181,144
Includes receivables with renegotiated terms
Total gross amount 83,189 987,349 717,858 60,662 453,042 34,631 46,382 437,005
Total allowance for impairment 614 79,713 71,154 182 160 0 2,500 5,092
Total carrying amount 82,575 907,636 646,704 60,480 452,882 34,631 43,882 431,913

32



Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Credit rating systems

The risk assessment and scoring of corporate cestorproject companies, commodity and trade finance
and municipal customers are based on individualyaisaand rating and are accompanied by regular
financial monitoring and annual limit renewal. Fieing is based on credit limit with only a simpidi
approval method on transaction level.

For loan products to private individuals, privatenking customers, and for part of the small andiamed
size enterprises automatic scorecard-based riglsss®nt processes are in place.

Internal rating categories are the followings:

e Minimal risk: This grade is reserved for externally top rategpomates (AAA) and for other
special cases which are regarded to incorporatarmailrrisk (for example: government linked
companies, externally AAA-rated OECD countries).

« Excellent credit standing: For all other customers, this is the best rativag tan be achieved.
Based on excellent profitability, financial obligats can be fulfiled at any time. The
company has a very strong equity base and a hdaitimycing structure.

* Very good credit standing: Based on very strong profitability, the probailithat all
payments — capital and interest — can be fulfilidsb in the long run is very high. The
company has a strong equity base and healthy fingustructure.

« Good credit standing: Based on strong profitability, all financial okdiipns can be expected
to be fulfilled in the medium term. Good equity bad healthy substance.

e Average credit standing: Based on strong profitability, no interruptions mfincipal and
interest payments are expected. Reasonable firgatrincture with satisfactory equity base.

« Acceptable credit standing: Based on satisfactory profitability, no interragptiof principal
and interest payments are expected, however ireneagensitivity towards massive
deterioration of the economic environment. Limifegncing flexibility.

« Weak credit standing: The Company shows marginal profitability and hasydimited
financial flexibility. Substantial deterioration dhe economic parameters could negatively
affect timely principal and interest payments.

« Very weak credit standing: Company with weak profitability and inadequateafigcing
structure. Already minor deterioration of the ecmmmenvironment can interfere with full and
timely fulfillment of financial obligations.

e Doubtful/high default risk: Company with very weak profitability and problemdtnancing
structure. Partial loss of principal or interesexpected in work out case.

« Default: Default. Financial obligations could not be contgl fulfilled in time.

* Unrated: unrated exposures in the corporate sector mosiiyn to that subsegment of the
corporate portfolio which is under Standard apphogeermanent partial use: see 1996. CXI|
Act of Parliament 76/D8), thus do not have internaling per definition (e.g. housing
cooperatives HUF 2.4 billion in 2011 and HUF 19ilidn in 2010). Unrated exposure in the
retail sector are that loans which are providedstysidiaries (HUF 33.3 billion in 2011 and
HUF 17.3 billion in 2010).

Impaired loans and securities

Impaired loans and securities are loans and sessufdr which the Group determines that it is pldbahat
it will be unable to collect all principal and imgst due according to the contractual terms ofloha /
securities agreement(s).

The Group establishes an allowance for impairmesgds on assets carried at amortised cost orfiddsss
available-for-sale that represents its estimaténofirred losses in its loan and investment deburigc
portfolio. The main components of this allowance arspecific loss component that relates to indiig
significant exposures, and a collective loan ldkswence established for groups of homogeneoudsisse
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respect of losses that have been incurred but hatebeen indentified on loans that are considered
individually non-significant, as well as individiplsignificant exposures that were subject to irdlial
assessment for impairment but not found to be iddally impaired. Assets carried at fair value thgh
profit or loss are not subject to impairment tegtas the measure of fair value reflects the crepatiity of
each asset.

Past due but not impaired loans

Past due but not impaired loans are those for wbattiractual interest or principal payments are das
but the Group believes that impairment is not appate on the basis of the level of the collateradilable
and the stage of collection of amounts owed ta3hmup.

Loans with renegotiated terms

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that haes bestructured due to deterioration in the boertav
financial position. In such cases the original terof the contract were changed in order to help the
borrower to overcome a financial difficulty.

The carrying amount of financial assets that watlierwise be past due or impaired whose termg ha
been renegotiated is HUF 6.7 billion in 2011 &tdF 2.7 billion in 2010.

Write-off policy

A loan (and the related impairment allowance actoisnnormally written off, either partially or ifull,
when there is no realistic prospect of recoveryhef principal amount and, for a collateralised |oahen
the proceeds from realising the collateral havenlveeeived.

Collateral

It is the Group’s policy, when lending, to do sahin the customer’s capacity to repay, rather ttrarely
primarily on collateral. Depending on the custormaredit standing and the type of product, faeditmay
be unsecured. Nevertheless, collateral can be portemt mitigant of credit risk.

As a general principle, when calculating collate@erage the Group takes into account collatehéthwvis
defined in the Raiffeisen International Group Diree for Collateral Evaluation (Catalogue) that qoies
with all of the following requirements:

« valid legal title;

* sustainable intrinsic value;

» realizable and willingness to realize;

« little or no correlation between the credit staigdaf the borrower and the value of the collateral.

The major types of collateral accepted are asvi@lomortgages, securities, pledge on machineryh,cas
pledge on inventories, commodities, guaranteesp#mel comfort factors.

Collateral evaluation processes (performed by €r&isk Management Department Collateral Office
Group) are different in several major areas:

» For real estate mortgages, Collateral Office caersithe current fair value and the marketability of
the real estate.

« Concerning evaluation of pledge on inventoriesutagdata collection from clients and frequency
of physical checks are also taken into considematiben determining the discounts applied.

* Collateral Office also introduced detailed marketuation of pledge on machinery (valuation is
prepared by professional in-house leasing experts).

« Commodity collateral financed deals are monitorg@xperts regularly.
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The fair value of collateral held at the reportdage was as follows:

2011 (HUF million) Placements Loans and Loans Loansand  Guarantees and Total
with banks  advances to and advances to undrawn credit  Collateral
corporate  advances Government facilities
clients to retail and public
clients sector
Cash deposit 11,270 42,974 7,446 18,668 15,046 95,404
Debt securities issued by 4,914 21,639 1,517 0 1,529 29,599
Central governments 4,914 1,351 459 0 1,074 7,798
Companies 0 911 710 0 306 1,927
Others 0 19,377 348 0 149 19,874
Shares 0 237 58 0 413 708
Mortgage on 0 282,767 313,260 50 31,176 627,253
Residential real estate 0 77,579 299,982 0 2,578 380,139
Commercial real estate 0 202,427 12,610 50 28,592 243,679
Other 0 2,761 668 0 6 3,435
Guarantees from 0 20,078 5,174 0 12,088 37,340
Central governments 0 12,303 5,154 0 3,095 20,552
Other banks 0 7,775 20 0 8,993 16,788
Other 0 109,000 664 0 27,284 136,948
Total collateral 16,184 476,695 328,119 18,718 87,536 927,252
2010 (HUF million) Placements Loans and Loans Loansand  Guarantees and Total
with banks  advances to and advances to undrawn credit  Collateral
corporate  advances Government facilities
clients to retail and public
clients sector
Cash deposit 9,937 33,379 10,285 24,551 16,953 95,105
Debt securities issued by 7,203 40,231 1,578 0 1,305 50,317
Central governments 7,203 1,162 351 0 821 9,537
Companies 0 574 517 0 384 1,475
Others 0 38,495 710 0 100 39,305
Shares 0 21,052 43 0 80 21,175
Mortgage on 0 236,976 454,582 0 31,405 722,963
Residential real estate 0 50,047 429,162 0 3,571 482,780
Commercial real estate 0 176,681 21,897 0 27,469 226,047
Other 0 10,248 3,523 0 365 14,136
Guarantees from 0 14,081 2,448 0 6,484 23,013
Central governments 0 8,268 2,446 0 4,513 15,227
Other banks 0 5,813 2 0 1,971 7,786
Other 0 138,771 1,068 0 31,436 171,275
Total collateral 17,140 484,490 470,004 24,551 87,663 1,083,848
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The fair value of collateral for individually impaid and past due but not impaired assets held &y th
reporting date is the following:

(HUF million) 2011 2010

Individually impaired 279,547 145,347
Past due but not impaired 1,168 1,899
Total 280,715 147,246

Assets obtained by the Group by taking possesdionltateral held as security, or calling upon otbeedit
enhancements, were as follows:

(HUF million) 2011 2010

Real estate 192 60
Inventories 1,033 1,116
Total assets obtained 1,225 1,176

Concentrations by sector

The Group monitors concentrations of credit riskd®gtor. An analysis of credit risk concentration b
sector at the reporting dates is shown below:

2011 (HUF million) Placements Loansand Investment Other Derivative  OFF B/S
with banks advances to in debt receivables assets exposures
customers securities

Real estate 0 260,274 0 118 3,741 9,229
Domestic trade 0 166,038 0 253 2,523 78,059
Other, mainly service industries 0 269,752 0 1,009 2,464 40,904
Finance 94,997 110,082 0 14,849 38,888 41,216
Central Bank 5,441 0 100,713 0 298 0
Public administration 0 1,829 288,977 4,339 0 32,665
Chemicals and pharmaceuticals 0 77,918 13,485 0 2,819 54,709
Food processing 0 53,906 0 1 829 10,707
Agriculture 0 53,898 0 1 430 5,706
Transportation, communication 0 48,522 0 2 2 29,062
Construction 0 60,092 0 141 873 114,600
Heavy industry 0 40,923 0 0 1,438 15,358
Light industry 0 17,596 0 0 522 12,081
Energy 0 14,236 0 1 4 12,215
Infrastructure 0 3,389 0 1 0 1,089
Private households 0 597,719 0 167 3,906 13,982
Total exposure 100,438 1,776,174 403,175 20,882 58,737 471,582
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2010 (HUF million) Placements Loans and Investment Other Derivative  OFF B/S
with banks advancesto  in debt receivables assets exposures
customers  securities

Real estate 0 243,324 0 115 3,010 8,857
Domestic trade 0 148,836 0 215 2,739 67,159
Other, mainly service industries 0 200,502 0 590 2,435 33,603
Finance 82,221 102,539 0 33,371 30,847 44,490
Central Bank 968 0 114,869 0 0 0
Public administration 0 56,737 336,946 0 377 20,108
Chemicals and pharmaceuticals 0 71,884 0 1 1,298 32,285
Food processing 0 67,136 0 1 193 8,279
Agriculture 0 41,149 0 0 223 7,661
Transportation, communication 0 53,277 0 6 235 33,979
Construction 0 78,984 0 193 429 122,289
Heavy industry 0 45,025 1,227 1 881 13,170
Light industry 0 21,124 0 0 197 11,746
Energy 0 11,902 0 1 46 16,655
Infrastructure 0 4,253 0 1 0 1,075
Private households 0 619,197 0 136 3,472 15,649
Total exposure 83,189 1,765,869 453,042 34,631 46,382 437,005

(c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or frdicash flows of a financial instrument will fluetie because
of changes in market prices. Market risk compribese types of risk: currency risk, interest rask and

other price risk.

Management of market risk

The objective of market risk management is to adnmrarket risk exposures within acceptable pararagte
while optimizing the return.

Due to the world-wide economic downturn new mamkgt management methods were developed by the
RBI. A new VaR (Value at Risk) limit system was il@mented where separate VaR limits were assigned to
the different risk types: interest rate risk of theding book, interest rate risk of the bankingloequity
price risk of the trading book, and Group’s FX oppasition risk. Moreover, during the past two yeidrs
audit and control functions became stricter thaforge New reports were implemented for market risk
related risk types. New Stress Test Analysis assggis were created, that are regularly presentéketo
Management.

The management of market risk exposure is sepebat®eeen trading and non-trading portfolios.

Trading portfolios include positions arising from market-making, piefary position-taking and other
mark-to-market positions designated so. Tradingviies include transactions with debt and equity
securities, foreign currencies and financial deéieainstruments.

Non-trading portfolios (banking book) include positions that arise from the intereseé naanagement of
the Group’s retail and commercial banking assetd kabilities. The Group's non-trading activities
encompass all activities other than accounted foitrading transactions, including lending, acceaptin
deposits, and issuing debt instruments.

Exposure to interest rate risk — trading and bankjriook

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatweghe future cash flows of a financial instrumeyiit fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. gtteme risk is measured by the sensitivity analgsithe
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bank-book net interest income and of the mark-toketavalue of the trading book to the volatility of
interest rates.

Interest rate exposure is the most significant feeitor in the banking and trading book portfoli@n

Group level, strict Basis Point Value limits andidaat-risk (VaR) limits are defined, which are ritored
on daily basis.

At the reporting date the interest rate profilgéref Group’s interest-bearing financial instrumems:

Interest-bearing financial instruments (HUF million)

Fixed rate instruments As at 31 December 2011
Financial assets 316,975
Financial liabilities 689,692
Total fixed rate instruments (372,717)

Variable rate instruments

As at 31 December 2011

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

HUF 549,142 810,615
CHF 657,605 86,520
EUR 599,332 350,472
uUsD 29,359 28,140
Other currencies 7,559 6,485
Total variable rate financial instruments 1,842,997 1,282,232
Interest-bearing financial instruments (HUF million)

Fixed rate instruments As at 31 December 2010

Financial assets 386,002

Financial liabilities 583,391

Total fixed rate instruments (197,389)

Variable rate instruments

As at 31 December 2010

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

HUF 506,609 768,215
CHF 830,417 186,638
EUR 564,255 568,508
uUsD 19,492 52,311
Other currencies 6,456 5,185
Total variable rate financial instruments 1,927,229 1,580,857

In order to ensure interest rate risk exposuresnaimtained within the approved limits, the Grouges!
interest rate swaps and other derivative interat derivative contracts as primary risk management
techniques.

The Group uses derivatives designated in a quatjffiedge relationship to hedge the fair value ofage
fixed interest loans, fixed interest and structusstdied bonds.. The Group also has contracts sajroed
in a qualifying hedge relationship to manage itpasure to interest rate risks. The profit and lofsssk
management derivatives is shown in the “Net incénmen derivatives held for risk management”.

Fair value hedgegHUF million) 2011 2010
Valuation gain/loss on hedged instruments 6,419 981
Valuation gain/loss on hedging interest rate swaps (6,154) (935)

38



Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Exposure to currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value otuiie cash flows of a financial instrument will fluate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. \G4leunlating exposures to currency risk, the Grakes

into account the entire open position.

The Group’s financial position in foreign currersi the reporting dates was as follows:

2011 (HUF million) HUF CHF EUR UsSD Other Total
Cash and cash equivalents 75,262 2,180 8,720 7,532 4,591 98,285
Placements with banks 7,731 17,341 74,518 164 23 99,777
Loans and advances to customers 485,98%517,914 496,116 22,871 3,352 1,526,238
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sle
except for derivatives 11,431 0 0 0 0 11,431
Available for sale securities 115,960 126,143 11,305 0 0 253,408
Held to maturity securities 132,030 0 11,156 0 0 143,186
Financial assets except for derivatives 828,399 663,578 601,815 30,567 7,966 2,132,325
Deposits from banks 98,028 82,477 122,271 14,483 811 318,070
Deposits from non-banks 1,123,522 8,698 260,238 34,820 7,260 1,434,538
Debt securities issued 108,254 0 18,068 0 0 126,322
Subordinated liabilities 183 0 59,297 0 0 59,480
Financial liabilities except for derivatives 1,32987 91,175 459,874 49,303 8,071 1,938,410
Net open position on balance sheet (501,588) 572,403 141,941 (18,736) (105) 193,915
Net derivative and spot instruments (short) / long
position 525,812 (581,469) (184,719) 16,862 (1,206) (224,720)
Total net currency positions 24,224  (9,066) (42,778) (1,874) (1,311) (30,805)
2010 (HUFE million) HUF CHF EUR USD Other Total
Cash and cash equivalents 39,252 161 14,852 1,657 3,227 59,149
Placements with banks 1,182 17,769 63,438 154 32 82,575
Loans and advances to customers 484,202 621,161 464,628 41,348 3,481 1,614,820
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sle
except for derivatives 19,015 0 0 0 0 19,015
Available for sale securities 141,504 142,269 13,180 0 0 296,953
Held to maturity securities 142,762 0 1,227 0 0 143,989
Financial assets except for derivatives 827,917 781,360 557,325 43,159 6,740 2,216,501
Deposits from banks 120,342 128,858 278,882 2,239 85 530,406
Deposits from non-banks 1,000,789 7,028 252,968 57,151 5,761 1,323,697
Debt securities issued 122,680 0 23,627 0 0 146,307
Subordinated liabilities 524 0 53,093 0 0 53,617
Financial liabilities except for derivatives 1,244335 135,886 608,570 59,390 5,846 2,054,027
Net open position on balance sheet (416,418) 645,474 (51,245) (16,231) 894 162,474
Net derivative and spot instruments (short) / long
position 563,265 (640,939) 22,638 16,894 (2,187) (40,329)
Total net currency positions 146,847 4,535 (28,607) 663 (1,293) 122,145

The Group defines strict limits for the open pasis and uses VaR indicators as well. These lintés a

monitored on a daily basis.
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Exposure to other price risk — trading book

Other price risk is the risk that the fair valuefaoture cash flows of a financial instrument wilidtuate
because of changes in market prices (other thasetlasising from interest rate risk or currency }isk
whether those changes are caused by factors sperxifiie individual financial instrument or its ugs, or
factors affecting all similar financial instrumerttaded in the market.

The Group’s price risk only constitutes of openlexuge traded equity exposures. The Group defimes st
limits for open equity exposures and uses prick YiaR as well. These limits are monitored on aydail
basis.

Tools for managing market risk — trading book andbking book
Value at Risk

The principal tool used to measure and control etarikk exposure within the Group’s trading andkiag
portfolio is Value at Risk (VaR). A VaR indicaton®wvs the maximum loss of a financial instrumentarnd
a given period and confidence level, within nore@lirse of business. The VaR model used by the Gsoup
based upon a 99 percent confidence level and assarh@-day holding period. The VaR is a risk inttica
which must be assigned to the distribution of guesiosses of the financial instrument. The Gropplias
mostly the parametrical VaR calculation (and in earases the historical and Monte-Carlo VaR).

A basic assumption of the parametrical VaR metisaithat market factors follow multidimensional nofma
distribution. Considering the trading book produittsy can be divided into three basic factors -ifpr
currency, interest rate and price — and risks ared according to this categorization.

VaR is not the sum of every single component (fpreiurrency risk, interest rate risk and price )riak
there is a correlation between the components glfieation effect).

Diversification effect results in reduction of tbeerall risk of a portfolio when its individual cgmonent
risks do not move together. Foreign currency nislce risk and interest rate risk do not correlsiidn each
other perfectly, thus diversification effect existBhe VaR figure is calculated daily on fundamesital
separately and on their entire group as well.

A summary of the VaR position of the Group’s tragiportfolios and banking book at 31 December and
during the period is as follows:

VaR position

2011 (HUF million)
Trading Book VaR atyearend Average VaR Minimum VaR  Maximum VaR
Foreign Currency Risk 276 124 11 537
Interest Rate Risk 317 320 81 503
Price Risk 6 11 0 27
Total Risk 342 295 94 718
Diversification Effect 257 160 0 0
Banking Book VaR atyearend Average VaR  Minimum V&R  Maximum VaR
Foreign Currency Risk 0 0 0 0
Interest Rate Risk 951 654 360 1,262
Total Risk 951 654 360 1,262
Diversification Effect 0 0 0 0
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VaR position

Trading Book

VaR at year end

Average VaR

2010 (HUF million)

Minimum VaR  Maximum VaR

Foreign Currency Risk
Interest Rate Risk
Price Risk

Total Risk
Diversification Effect

Banking Book

34
346
0

303

(78)

VaR at year end

Foreign Currency Risk
Interest Rate Risk
Total Risk
Diversification Effect

0

677
677
0

75 5 265
278 75 1,410
12 0 34
293 78 1,411
(71) 0 0
Average VaR  Minimum V&  Maximum VaR
0 0 0
558 270 1,458
558 270 1,458
0 0 0

Gap report

Alongside Value-at-Risk measurement, interest rsfeis also estimated using classical means oitalap
and interest maturity analysis. In the gap repibe, assets and liabilities are shown in differericing
categories according to the repricing dates.

Repricing of assets and liabilities occurs when:

e they are due,

« part of the principal is repaid according to thatcact,

» the interest is repriced according to the contbasied on a reference rate,
« the assets or liabilities are repaid by the custdmeéore maturity.

The interest-bearing off-balance sheet items arpagred as nominal deposits and loans. The difference
between the assets and liabilities in the sameangricategory is called ‘gap’. The gap in a parteul
category is positive when assets exceed liabiliteesl negative when the total value of the assmts dot
reach that of the liabilities. For these kind opgdhe Bank has defined limits.

The following table shows the gap report of thelimg book and the banking book as at 31 Decembg&t 20
and 2010, respectively:

Gap report 2011 (HUF million)

Trading book HUF UsSD EUR CHF

less than 3 months (127,771) 12,245 57,407 4,138
3 months to 1 year (18,870) (4,641) 30,565 4,205
1 year to 5 years 12,981 0 1,085 (15)
over 5 years 1,342 0 0 0
Banking book HUF UsD EUR CHF

less than 3 months 106,266 20,297 (80,594) (52,239)
3 months to 1 year 91,606 (7,615) (64,779) 22,452
1 year to 5 years 67,176 (13) (3,404) (101)
over 5 years 11,759 0 114 (140)
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Gap report 2010 (HUF million)

Trading book HUF UsD EUR CHF

less than 3 months (101,812) 30,285 88,554 4,177
3 months to 1 year (57,906) 149 (5,062) 170
1 year to 5 years 47,933 263 (1,195) (18)
over 5 years (3,981) 0 (1,394) 0
Banking book HUF Usb EUR CHF

less than 3 months 294,378 (17,406) (83,566) (5,208
3 months to 1 year (22,795) (896) 29,725 37,342
1 year to 5 years 34,893 0 3,149 23
over 5 years 16,892 0 188 0

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will engoter difficulty in meeting obligations associateih its
financial liabilities.

Management of liquidity risk

The objective of liquidity management is to provithee necessary liquidity for the Group to meet its
liabilities when due at all times, under both norarad stressed conditions.

Liquidity risk management is key priority in RBI @1p as well as in Raiffeisen Bank Hungary, thertigy
Group has a comprehensive set of group-standacikaal internal rules, regulations and practicesidties
the legal regulations regarding liquidity requiremge Liquidity management procedures, tasks,
responsibilities, reports, instructions for theitisystems are all governed in Management direstive

Liquidity situation is one of the main issue forsés Liability Commitee (ALCO). ALCO is responsilfiar
balance sheet management, liquidity risk manageraadt setting local limit system according to (or
sometimes stricter than) the limits determined W§l Rreasury. The ALCO meets monthly and has
extraordinary meetings if necessary.

Besides internal liquidity risk reporting, the RBitepares liquidity report based on data providedhsy
Bank on a weekly basis for consolidation purpoeesder to monitor group wide liquidity risk.

The Group’s liquidity policy which includes the liglity contingency plan as well is reviewed annyall
In order to strenghten its liquidity position theo@p introduced the following measures:

« stopped lending in CHF and foreign currencies othan EUR,

* reduced its short term FX swap positions,

e increased long term cross currency swap positionsladed with RBI,
e reduced its loan to deposit ratio.

The following table shows the undiscounted castvgl@n the Group’s non-derivative financial liabdg
and the issued financial guarantee contracts orbaisés of their earliest possible maturity. Theldaddso
shows a maturity analysis for derivative finandiabilities including the remaining contractual maties
for those derivatives for which contractual matastare essential for an understanding of the giniinthe
cash flows. The gross nominal inflow / (outflow)sdiosed in the following table is the remaining
contractual, undiscounted cash flow on the nonvdéxie financial liability and the issued financial
guarantees. The disclosure for derivatives shogress inflow and outflow amount for derivatives.
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Liquidity risk 2011 (HUF million)
Carrying amount ~ Gross nominal 3 months or less  3-12 months 1-5 years more than 5 years
inflow/(outflow)
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 318,070 336,788 65,829 56,665 143,122 71,172
Deposits from non-banks 1,434,538 1,459,300 1,102,224 281,428 63,026 12,622
Debt securities issued 126,322 155,528 29,532 14,940 105,482 5,574
Subordinated liabilities 59,480 73,676 249 683 5,227 67,517
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss -
except for derivatives 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other liabilities 56,768 56,768 56,768 0 0 0
Liabilities held for sale 156 156 156 0 0 0
Total liabilities 1,995,334 2,082,216 1,254,758 353,716 316,857 156,885
Derivative instruments
Interest rate swaps used for hedging 0 25,770 3,687 2,013 19,637 433
Forward exchange contracts: 0 (2,251) (486) 30,389 (29,498) (2,656)
- Outflow 0 2,005,322 729,063 591,660 659,734 24,865
- Inflow 0 2,007,573 729,549 561,271 689,232 27,521
Contingent liabilities 1,055 1,055 1,055 0 0 0
Other commitments and contingencies 1,055 1,055 1,055 0 0 0
Commitments 320,810 320,810 44,658 74,660 147,584 53,908
Unutilised loan facilities 139,699 139,699 11,316 44,262 53,508 30,613
Unutilised overdraft facilities 105,250 105,250 27,098 25,808 41,901 10,443
Unutilised guarentee frames 75,861 75,861 6,244 4,590 52,175 12,852
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Liquidity risk 2010 (HUF million)
Carrying amount ~ Gross nominal 3 months or less 3-12 months  1-5 years more than 5 years
inflow/(outflow)
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 530,406 550,610 131,283 163,286 206,031 50,010
Deposits from non-banks 1,323,697 1,344,780 1,060,329 224,544 48,675 11,232
Debt securities issued 146,307 155,149 9,485 66,196 79,468 0
Subordinated liabilities 53,617 66,255 287 1,208 3,763 60,997
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss -
except for derivatives 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other liabilities 66,257 66,257 66,257 0 0 0
Liabilities held for sale 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total liabilities 2,120,284 2,183,051 1,267,641 455,234 337,937 122,239
Derivative instruments
Interest rate swaps used for hedging 0 22,677 895 4,943 17,153 (314)
Forward exchange contracts: 0 (4,467) (111) (14,892) 10,536 0
- Outflow 0 1,817,998 781,203 329,917 706,878 0
- Inflow 0 1,822,465 781,314 344,809 696,342 0
Contingent liabilities 1,310 1,310 1,310 0 0 0
Other commitments and contingencies 1,310 1,310 1,310 0 0 0
Commitments 261,915 261,915 38,015 108,222 79,737 35,941
Unutilised loan facilities 98,784 98,784 16,981 40,027 32,401 9,375
Unutilised overdraft facilities 93,117 93,117 17,349 59,926 4,880 10,962
Unutilised guarentee frames 70,014 70,014 3,685 8,269 42,456 15,604
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Economic capital is allocated monthly to the iliidositions in the trading book. The developménhds
economic capital is shown in the below table:

Economic capital allocated for illiquid Economic capital allocated for illiquid
positions in 2011 positions in 2010

Date Million HUF Date Million HUF
2011.01.31 72 2010.01.31 205
2011.02.28 134 2010.02.28 95
2011.03.31 113 2010.03.31 109
2011.04.29 127 2010.04.30 125
2011.05.31 156 2010.05.31 86
2011.06.30 155 2010.06.30 34
2011.07.29 376 2010.07.31 58
2011.08.31 59 2010.08.31 146
2011.09.30 452 2010.09.30 93
2011.10.28 68 2010.10.31 41
2011.11.30 73 2010.11.30 74
2011.12.31 50 2010.12.31 67

(e) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirdass arising from a wide variety of causes assediatith the
Group’s processes, personnel, technology, andsiméreture, and from external factors other tharepur
credit, market and liquidity risks. Operationalkrialso includes risks arising from non-complianciéhw
legal and regulatory requirements and generallgpted standards of corporate behaviour. Thesayiiss
are inherent in each of the Group’s business adnal supporting activities.

The Group’s objective is to manage operational siskas to balance the avoidance of financial loasels
damage to the Group’s reputation with overall effctiveness and to avoid control proceduresrittict
initiative and creativity.

The Group has an Operational Risk Management nktemnsisting of a separate centralized Operational
Risk Controlling Group and approximately 80 Depamital Operational Risk Managers located in business
units, support departments, regions and at subsidia

Operational Risk Controlling applies different tedbr the identification of risks across all depsents. It
uses the following Operational Risk tools: Key Riskdicators; Scenarios; Control and Risk Self
Assessment; loss data collection and externalmtaaing.

The Group also uses a database of external pudfcdvents and is an active member of the Hungarian
Operational Risk Database (HunOR), which is a cdinso of Hungarian banks who share their loss tata
use it for risk identification, assessment and hemark analysis.

The processes above are used to help identify (fEksactive risk management) and are needed tacesd
the incidence of future loss events. The loss esvan¢ uploaded by the departmental operational risk
managers into a loss database, and based on tthi®thar data such as key risk indicators and risk
mitigation plans, quarterly reports are createddperational Risk Controlling to members of the Méald
Management and the Board of Directors. Furthermamapal reports are created for board membersen th
Group’s risk profile.

The main focus of Operational Risk Controlling ésdecrease the risk associated with improper messti
human processing errors; infrastructure and systdaia management; external and internal fraud taeit
To this end, Operational Risk Controlling Groupginently initiates risk mitigation measures.

Operational Risk Controlling gets strong managensrport, i.e. operational risk issues and possible
mitigation measures are discussed quarterly atGperational Risk Committee where the Chief Risk
Officer, the Chief Operations Officer and the Memshef the Operational Risk Committee (mainly heéd o

departments) decide on the priority of risk mitigatplans.
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(f) Capital management

The Group’s local regulator (Hungarian Financiap&wisory Authority hereinafter referred to as HFSA
sets and monitors capital requirements for the @rou

With effect from 1 January 2008 the Group is reegiito comply with the provisions of the Basel Il
framework in respect of regulatory capital.

The Bank as a member of Raiffeisen Bank InternatidBroup has been granted a joint approval in
December 2008 by the Austrian Financial Market Autly (home regulator) and the eight member
countries’ host authorities to adopt the use oérimil Rating Based approach to credit risk manageme
except in respect of some credit portfolios whielain under standard approach according to theotete
implementation plan.

Principal changes arising from the change to theeBih advanced approach framework were as follows:

* reduction of the negative difference of loan losgvjsion and expected loss from the core and
supplementary components of own funds;

« addition of the positive difference of loan los®yision and expected loss up to 0.6 % of risk-
weighted exposure amount to subsidiary capital;

< own fund should cover the capital requirement eflitr market and operational risk.

The Bank’s regulatory capital is analyzed into ¢htiers:

« tier 1 (core) capital, which includes subscribed capitabital reserve, tied-up reserve, retained
earnings, general risk provision, core loan cagifgdr deductions for intangible assets, valuation
adjustments calculated according to specific oibgislation for less liquid positions booked in the
trading book and the book value of repurchased sivames;

« tier 2 (subsidiary) capital, which includes valuationar®, qualifying subordinated liabilities,
surplus of loan loss provision over expected lasstiiose credit portfolios where IRB method is
used under Basel I);

e tier 3 (supplementary) capital, which can be used onlgaeer market risk, and includes junior
subordinated capital and the part of subsidianjtabfhat cannot be used due to the restriction
between core and subsidiary capital.

The following limits are applied to elements of ttapital base:

» the amount of core loan capital cannot exceed t&epe of total of all core capital components (if
core loan capital has contractual maturity);

» the amount of subsidiary capital may not exceeditheunt of core capital;

« the ratio of subordinated loan capital with a fixetturity that may be taken into account as
subsidiary capital, may not exceed 50 percent®ttre capital.

There are also restrictions on the amount of sarpfuloan loss provision over expected loss thay ba
included as part of tier 2 capital. Other dedudiémm capital include the book value of qualifyim¢erests

in other financial institutions, and exceeding amoof limitation of large exposures and investment
restrictions.

Banking operations are categorized as either tgabdmok or banking book, and risk-weighted assets ar
determined according to specified requirements seak to reflect the varying levels of risk attatie
assets and off-balance sheet exposures. As note@ aBasel Il capital requirement also introducetke
requirement in respect of operational risk whicHigeussed in Note 4 (e) above.

Besides the above capital requirements, the Gropgliey is to maintain a strong capital base sdoas
maintain investor, creditor and market confidennd & sustain future development of the businebe. T
impact of the level of capital on shareholdersuretis also recognized and the Group recognizeadhd to
maintain a balance between the higher returns mhight be possible with greater gearing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound caqusation.

The Group has complied with all externally imposegital requirements throughout the period.
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The Capital Management on group level defined atingrto the Banking Act, and the consolidation grou
is approved by HFSA taking into consideration tleenthant influence or participating interest of thenk
and the subsidiary business type (financial firnancillary services company). Consequently the IBR&
the supervisory consolidation group differ. Thédwing table shows the group of subsidiaries bging
to supervisory consolidation group.

Company
Raiffeisen Befektetési AlapkeseZrt.
Raiffeisen Eszkdz Lizing Zrt.

Raiffeisen Gazdasagi Szolgaltato Zrt.
Raiffeisen Lizing Zrt.

Raiffeisen Property Lizing Zrt.

RB Kereske@ihaz Kit.

SCT Karasz utca Kit.

SCT Tundérkert Kift.

T+T 2003 Kift.

Capital requirement calculation

The Group applies regulatory capital (Basel Il &ill) as well as economic capital (Basel Il Pilkar
ICAAP) for calculating capital adequacy, as definadBasel Il Framework. The Group calculates the
capital requirement for credit risk via the Foumoiatinternal Ratings Based (F-IRB) approach fomit-
retail portfolio since 1 December 2008. StartingrirJuly 2010, capital requirement of exposuresivage
individuals are measured by advanced IRB method.

Capital allocation

The allocation of capital between specific oper&i@and activities is driven by, firstly, ensuringoegh
capital to cover possible risks in order to guagantontinuous safe operation (going concern priecips
well as to cover occasionally high losses in exaemmarket circumstances, secondly, to optimize metur
achieved on the capital allocated.

Both regulatory and economic capital requirements ealculated by the Group. Economic capital
requirement is used for capital optimization pugsos

The process of allocating capital to specific opers and activities is undertaken independentlyhofe
responsible for the operation, by Credit Risk Caointdnit, and is subject to review by the Senior
Management. An additional tool of optimization ppying Risk and Equity Cost Based Pricing.

The Group’s policies in respect of capital managaraed allocation are reviewed regularly by the 8ozt
Directors.
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(5) Interest income

(HUFE million) 2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents ,664 2,583
Placements with banks 940 703
Loans and advances to customers 116,742 124,692
Securities at fair value through profit or loss 3,59 1,042
Government bonds 993 677
Treasury bills issued by the Government 195 237
Treasury bills issued by the Central Bank 2,151 125
Investment certificate 220 0
Other 0 3
Available for sale securities 11,763 9,741
Government bonds 489 1,031
Treasury bills issued by the Government 2 408
Treasury bills issued by the Central Bank 8,372 5,436
Other securities issued by the public sector 2,900 2,866
Held to maturity securities 9,097 10,814
Government bonds 8,614 10,761
Corporate bonds 483 53
From leases 2,403 3,015
Interest income 148,168 152,590

Total interest income calculated using the effeciivterest method reported above that relate tnéial
assets not carried at fair value through profioss is HUF 144,609 million (2010: HUF 151,548 roitl).

(6) Interest expense

(HUF million) 2011 2010
Deposits from banks 18,716 17,678
Deposits from non-banks 59,671 53,864
Dept securities issued 9,531 9,080
Subordinated liabilities 1,770 1,488
Interest expense 89,688 82,110

Total interest expense calculated using the effedtiterest method reported above that relatentnfiial
liabilities not carried at fair value through ptadir loss is HUF 89,688 million (2010: HUF 82,110lion).
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(7) Net fee and commission income

(HUF million) 2011 2010
Fee and commission income
Account management, turnover and cash handling fees 14,766 14,953
Guarantees and documentary credits 2,634 2,400
Fees from leases 508 471
Fees from investment services 4,965 4,964
Bankcard fees 3,300 3,600
Other commission and fee income 3,059 3,314
Total fee and commission income 29,232 29,702
(HUFE million) 2011 2010
Fee and commission expense
Payments transfer business 2,978 3,021
Loan administration and guarantee business 1,141 1,112
Securities business 624 938
Agency fees 907 1,033
Bankcard fees 1,376 1,233
Other banking services 1,157 1,486
Total fee and commission expense 8,183 8,823
Net income from commissions and fees 21,049 20,879
(8) Net trading income
(HUF million) 2011 2010
Realised net gains / (losses) from securities av&ue through profit or loss 1,186 1,158
Unrealised net gains / (losses) from securitidaiatalue through profit or loss (199) 586
Realised net gains / (losses) on FX positions angiat&ve instruments 30,250 15,954
Unrealised net gains / (losses) on FX positionsderivative instruments (25,808) (6,384)
Net trading income 5429 11,314

(9) Other operating income and other operating expenses

(HUFE million) 2011 2010
Other operating income
Realised net gains / (losses) from available-foe-saturities 226 547
Unrealised net gains / (losses) from availablesfale securities (25) (148)
Net gains / (losses) from held-to-maturity secesiti 753 2,007
Operational fees 350 0
Gains / (losses) on sale on receivables 337 (3)
Gains / (losses) on disposal of inventory (877) 584
Gains / (losses) on disposal of investments 476 249
Gains / (losses) on disposal of intangibles, priypetant and
equipment 188 (54)
Energy trading margin 2,076 2,059
Revenues related to damages 18 10
Other 832 3,007
Other operating income 4,354 8,258
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(HUFE million) 2011 2010

Other operating expenses
Other taxes 7,130 16,408
Telecommunication and information systems expenses 1,720 1,519
Business travel cost 620 563
Professional fees 5,287 5,184
Cash processing and delivery 538 755
Manpower services 1,021 1,368
External bankcard services 111 451
Advisory fees 2,625 1,562
Other 992 1,048
Office supplies 343 360
Depreciation 11,124 7,713
Impairment and write-offs 37,428 1,119
Fees to public authorities 1,477 860
Other 4,723 5,991
Other operating expenses 69,852 39,717

Other taxes contains the amount of HUF 2,751 miilEpecial Tax on Financial Institutions in 2011YQ0HUF

11,476 million).
Impairment and write-offs in 2011 mainly contaie tiotal loss from early repayment option (HUF 34,28
million).
(10) Impairment and provision for losses
(HUF million) 2011 2010
Impairment loss on 100,193 54,372
Placements with banks (29) (264)
Loans and advances to customers 97,5354,279
Investments in associates 2,672 0
Other assets 15 357
Provision on 5,669 3,246
Guarantees and contingencies 5,669 3,246
Impairment and provision for losses 105,862 57,618
(11) Personnel expenses
HUF million 2011 2010
Salaries 19,522 22,357
Social security contributions 6,186 7,033
Other personnel benefits 2,614 2,205
28,322 31,595
(HUF million) 2011 2010
Staff (person) Salary expense Staff (person) Salaexpense
Full time 3,059 19,302 3,367 22,078
Part time 36 193 58 247
Pensioners 4 23 6 22
Other 2 4 15 10
3,101 19,522 3,446 22,357
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(12)  Income tax

Income tax expense recognised in the consolidatembime statement

(HUFE million) 2011 2010

Current tax expense 185 146

Deferred tax expense/(income) (3,098) (1,637)
Origination and reversal of temporary differesice (3,123) (1,627)
Effect of changes in tax rates 0 (10)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 25 0
Income tax (2,913) (1,491)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2011 2010
(%) (%)
Profit before tax (91,795) (7,092)
Applicable tax rate 10.00% (9,180) 10.00% (709)
Tax effects of items that modify the profit befeaa under the
Hungarian tax law (11.56%) 10,607 (20.39%) 1,446
Temporary tax effects of IFRS adjustments 3.3793,098) 23.08% (1,637)
- Provisions, impairment losses for loans anddp&ninterest
and commission 1.00%  (914) (10.41%) 738
- Impairment losses on investments in associates 0.11% (99) 0.00% 0
- Other provisions 2.70% (2,480) (0.85%) 60
- Tangible and intagible assets 0.00% 3 (0.39%) 28
- Fair value of available-for-sale financial @sse (0.27%) 249  (0.01%) 1
- Effect of changes in tax rates 0.00% 0 0.14% (20)
- Recognition of previously unrecognised tax lgsse 0.00% 0 35.41% (2,511)
- Other (0.16%) 143  (0.80%) 57
Tax effects of consolidation 1.35% (1,242) 8.33% (591)
Income tax 3.17% (2,913) 21.03% (1,491)

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

In 2011, the Group accounted HUF 2,548 million defe tax asset (2010: HUF 642 million deferred tax
asset) directly against equity.
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(13) Net gains/losses on financial instruments
(HUF million) 2011 2010
Loans and receivables 26,228 76,621
Financial assets and liabilities measured at faine through
profit or loss 46,018 37,363
- Trading securities 4,546 2,786
- Trading derivative instruments 4,442 9,570
- Derivatives held for risk management 37,030 25,007
Held-to-maturity investments 9,850 12,821
Available-for-sale financial assets (1,231) 6,549
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 9,6488) (82,110)
Net gains/losses on financial instruments (8,823) 51,244
(14) Cash and cash equivalents
2011 (HUF million) HUF FCY Total
Cash and cheques 14,086 4,816 18,902
Balances with National Bank of Hungary (NBH) 57,167 0 57,167
Balances with other banks 4,009 18,207 22,216

Cash and cash equivalents 75,262 23,023 98,285

2010 (HUF million) HUF FCY Total
Cash and cheques 10,856 4,670 15,526
Balances with National Bank of Hungary (NBH) 22,774 0 22,774
Balances with other banks 5,621 15,228 20,849

Cash and cash equivalents 39,251 19,898 59,149

The current account with the National Bank of Hugg&BH) includes the compulsory reserve. The Group
is required to maintain reserves with the Natiddahk of Hungary equivalent to 3% (2010: 3%) of aert
deposits. The required average reserve balance retbto HUF 32,077 million (2010: HUF 30,813
million). The compulsory reserve requirement magoabe met by the Group’s holding of government
securities (see Note 17 and 18).

(15) Placements with banks
2011 (HUF million) Upto 1 year Over 1 year Total
HUF FCY HUF FCY
National Bank of Hungary 5,441 0 0 0 5,441
Other Banks 2,290 77,287 0 15,420 94,997
Impairment losses 0 661 0 0 661
Placements with banks 7,731 76,626 0 15,420 99,777
2010 (HUF million) Upto 1 year Over 1 year Total
HUF FCY HUF FCY
National Bank of Hungary 968 0 0 0 968
Other Banks 215 62,612 0 19,394 82,221
Impairment losses 0 614 0 0 614
Placements with banks 1,183 61,998 0 19,394 82,575
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Specific allowances for impairmentHUF million)

Balance at 1 January 2011 614
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 0
Recoveries (29)
Effect of foreign currency movements 76
Unwinding of discount 0
Write-offs 0
Balance at 31 December 2011 661
Balance at 1 January 2010 878
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 0
Recoveries (354)
Effect of foreign currency movements 90
Unwinding of discount 0
Write-offs 0
Balance at 31 December 2010 614
(16) Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost
2011 (HUF million) Gross Of which: Specific Collective Carrying
amount Non- allowances for allowances for amount
performing impairment impairment
loans
Corporate
Trading and industrial 408,749 111,941 64,282 2,329 342,138
Commercial real estate 249,473 48,527 28,817 1,569 219,087
Other 342,272 81,395 42,549 1,446 298,277
Total corporate 1,000,494 241,863 135,648 5,344 859,502
Retail 696,215 155,411 94,499 12,701 589,015
Government and public sector 79,465 3,584 1,744 0 77,721
Loans and advances to customers 1,776,174 400,858 231,981 18,045 1,526,238
2010 (HUF million) Gross Of which: Specific Collective Carrying
amount Non- allowances for allowances for amount
performing impairment impairment
loans
Corporate
Trading and industrial 418,482 89,874 46,070 2,490 369,922
Commercial real estate 228,333 29,503 13,226 1,173 213,934
Other 340,534 61,854 15,696 1,058 323,780
Total corporate 987,349 181,231 74,992 4,721 907,636
Retail 717,858 142,715 50,890 20,264 646,704
Government and public sector 60,662 3,311 182 0 60,480
Loans and advances to customers 1,765,869 327,257 126,064 24,985 1,614,820

Allowances for impairment

The following table shows a reconciliation of mowts on the allowance account in 2010 and 2011,

respectively:
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Specific allowances for impairment on loans and ade&s to customers 2011 2010
(HUE million)

Balance at 1 January 126,056 71,640
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 115,470 75,924
Recoveries (9,914) (11,617)
Effect of foreign currency movements 7,475 2,948
Write-offs (3,168) (13,744)
Change in consolidation group (4,028) 905
Balance at 31 December 231.891 126,056
Collective allowances for impairment on loans and ahees to customers 2011 2010
(HUF million)

Balance at 1 January 24,993 42,207
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 9,765 13,587
Recoveries (17,786) (33,712)
Effect of foreign currency movements 1,124 2,384
Write-offs (51) 0
Change in consolidation group 0 527
Balance at 31 December 18,045 24,993

In 2011, accumulated impairment losses amountddib 249,936 million (2010: HUF 151,049 million),
equal to 14.07 % (2010: 8.55 %) of gross amouwiuttanding loans.

Finance lease receivables
As part of its financing activities, the Group estéto finance lease transactions as a lessoRegember

31, 2010 and 2011, the reconciliation of the Gregposs investment in the lease, and the net pgreakre
of minimum lease payments receivable by relevamiiring maturity periods is as follows:

1 year
2011 (HUF million) Uptol "o OversS o
year years
years
Gross investment leases 11,5620,254 12,231 44,054
Unearned finance income 1,647 3,161 2,432 7,240
Net present value of minimum lease payments 9,92217,093 9,799 36,814
Accumulated allowance for uncollectible minimum
lease payments 3,928 4,680 504 9,112
Finance leases per balance sheet 5,99412,413 9,295 27,702
Uptol 1 year Over 5
2010 (HUF million) P to5 Total
year years
years
Gross investment leases 12,6821,265 9,256 43,209
Unearned finance income 1,473 1,644 94 3,211
Net present value of minimum lease payments 11,21519,621 9,162 39,998
Accumulated allowance for uncollectible minimum
lease payments 3,481 4,998 474 8,953
Finance leases per balance sheet 7,73414,623 8,688 31,045

In 2011, nil contingent rent was recognized in fica income (2010: nil), and unguaranteed residalalev
amounted to HUF 2,435 million (2010: HUF 2,459 roifl). At 31 December 2011, the accumulated
allowance for uncollectible minimum lease paymeatsounted HUF 8,868 million (2010: HUF 8,953
million). Contracts original maturity ranges fronyéar to 35 years. The contracts earn interestanialve
rates linked to the relating BUBOR, CHFLIBOR, EURIB. No guaranteed residual value exists.
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(17)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or Iss

(HUFE million) 2011 2010
Cost  Accrued Unrealised Impairment Book Cost Accrued Unrealised Impairment Book
interest gain/loss value interest gain/loss value
Debt and equity instruments:
Government bonds 7,991 324 (202) 0 8,113 16,303 698 (81) 0 16,920
Treasury bills 1,707 1 0 0 1,708 131 0 0 0 131
Corporate bonds and other bonds a7 2 2 0 51 0 0 0 0 0
Bank bonds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Investment fund units 358 0 88 0 446 473 0 98 0 571
Shares 1,211 0 (98) 0 1,113 1,413 0 (20) 0 1,393
Debt and equity instruments 11,314 327 (210) 0 11,431 18,320 698 (3) 0 19,015
Derivative financial instruments:
Derivatives held for trading
FX swaps 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,678 0 6,678
FX forwards 0 0 12,056 0 12,056 0 0 2,192 0 2,192
Security forwards 0 0 60 0 60 0 0 329 0 329
FX futures 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
FX options 0 0 4,086 0 4,086 0 0 1,502 0 1,502
Interest rate derivatives 0 7,980 24,455 0 32,435 0 7,181 23,460 0 30,641
Derivatives held for trading 0 7,980 40,657 0 48,637 0 7,181 34,161 0 41,342
Derivatives held for risk management:
FX swaps (680) 807 9,116 0 9,243 726 433 1,841 0 3,000
FX forwards 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Security forwards 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
FX futures 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
FX options 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Interest rate derivatives 0 198 659 0 857 0 1,834 206 0 2,040
Derivatives held for risk management (680) 1,005 9,775 0 10,100 726 2,267 2,047 0 5,040
Total derivative financial instruments (680) 8,985 50,432 0 58,737 726 9,448 36,208 0 46,382
Total financial asset at fair value through profitor loss 10,634 9,312 50,222 0 70,168 19,046 10,146 36,205 0 65,397
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Derivatives held for risk management
The Group uses other derivatives, not designatedgualifying hedge relationship, to manage itsosxpe to foreign currency, interest rate and equityket risks. The

instruments used include interest rate swaps, @wsency interest rate swaps, forward contractd,@ptions. The fair values of those derivativessirown in the table
above.

(18) Investment in securities
At 31 December 2011, HUF 222,782 million (2010: H2B9,168 million) from the total amount of Investn in securities were pledged as collateral fvilities.

During 2011, in connection with available-for-satwestment securities an amount of HUF (3,449)iomll(2010: HUF (3,591) million) was recognised ither
comprehensive income, and an amount of HUF 6,41®m{2010: HUF 0 million) was reclassified fronther comprehensive income to profit or loss.

(HUFE million) 2011 2010
Available-for-sale securities Cost Accrued Unrealised Impairment Book Cost Accrued Unrealised Impairment Book value
interest gain/loss value interest gain/loss
Corporate and municipal bonds 166,067 746 (19,726) 0 147,087, 167,769 529 (6,836) 0 161,462
Investment fund units 3,275 0 204 (37) 3,442 4,693 0 418 0 5111
Government bonds 3,094 6 1 (132) 2,969 15,138 347 40 (160) 15,365
Treasury bills 99,869 58 2 (19) 99,910, 114,933 27 55 0 115,015
272,305 810  (19,519) (188) 253,408 302,533 903 (6,323) (160) 296,953
Held-to-maturity securites Cost Accrued Discount/  Impairment Book Cost Accrued  Discount/ Impairment Book value
interest  Premium value interest Premium
Corporate bonds and other 10,574 470 112 0 11,156 1,167 13 47 0 1,227
Government bonds 125,831 5,135 1,064 0 132,0300 133,668 6,167 2,927 0 142,762
136,405 5,605 1,176 0 143,186 134,835 6,180 2,974 0 143,989
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(19) Investment in associates

General and financial data of the associates foy#ars ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 is aw$ollo

Total Revenues Expenses Profit /

2011 (HUF million) Ownership (%) Current Non-current Total Current Non-current
assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities (loss)
NOC Kit. 40.67% 628 4,200 4,828 4,924 (96) 4,828 509 1,205 (696)
628 4,200 4,828 4,924 (96) 4,828 509 1,205 (696)
2010 (HUF million) Ownership (%) Current Non- Total assets Current Non-current Total Revenues Expenses Profit /
assets current liabilities liabilities liabilities (loss)
assets
New Outlet Center Kift. 40.67% 613 4,378 4,991 4,407 584 4,991 654 909 (255)
Upper Land Kift. 40.67% 1 17 18 11 7 18 0 4 4
Middle Outlet Kft. 40.67% 1 0 1 11 (10) 1 0 4 4
615 4,395 5,010 4,429 581 5,010 654 917 (263)

The operations of entities treated as equity imaests are stable and support the carrying valuéiseoGroup's equity investment. Therefore, the @rdid not account

any impairment loss relating to these firms in¢basolidated financial statements.
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(20)  Property, plant and equipment

Owner occupied property

2011 (HUF | Gross Additions Disposals Acquired/  Assets Gross | Accumulated Depre- Disposals Acquired/  Assets Accumulated| Carrying Carrying

million) carrying (sold) classified carrying | depreciaton ciation (sold) classified depreciation | amount  amount

amount through as held amount asatl for the through as held asatl asat3l
asatl business forsale asat31l January year business for sale January December

January combina- December 2011 combina- 2011 2011
2011 tions 2011 tions

Properties 19,553 270 1,508 6,008 0 24,323 5818 2,111 1,014 619 0 7,534| 13,735 16,789
Freehold 1,680 18 563 6,008 0 7,143 210 313 14 619 0 1,128 1,470 6,015
Leasehold 17,873 252 945 0 0 17,180 5,608 1,798 1,000 0 0 6,406| 12,265 10,774
Equipment 20,180 817 1,981 (178) 0 18,838 14,360 1,824 1,625 47 0 14,606 5,820 4,232
39,733 1,087 3,489 5,830 0 43,161 20,178 3,935 2,639 666 0 22,140, 19,555 21,021

2010 (HUF | Gross Additions Disposals Acquired/  Assets Gross | Accumulated Depre- Disposals Acquired/  Assets Accumulated | Carrying Carrying

million) carrying (sold) classified carrying | depreciaton ciation (sold) classified depreciation | amount  amount

amount through as held amount asatl for the through as held asatl asat3l
asatl business forsale asat31 January year business for sale January December

January combina- December 2010 combina- 2010 2010
2010 tions 2010 tions

Properties 30,180 450 142 (10,935) 0 19,553 6,281 1,263 15 (2,7112) 0 5,818| 23,899 13,735
Freehold 12,565 192 142 (10,935) 0 1,680 1,877 44 0 (2,7112) 0 210 10,688 1,470
Leasehold 17,615 258 0 0 0 17,873 4,404 1,219 15 0 0 5,608/ 13,211 12,265
Equipment 23,824 1,562 1,726 0 3,480 20,180 13,671 2,835 1,521 0 625 14,360 10,153 5,820
54,004 2,012 1,868 (10,935) 3,480 39,733 19,952 4,098 1,536 (1,711) 625 20,178| 34,052 19,555

In 2011 HUF 2,385 million impairment losses wereognised for properties in the consolidated incetatement under other operating expenses (2010:40dMnillion).
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Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.

Investment property

2011 (HUF Gross Additions Disposals Acquired/  Assets Gross | Accumulated Depre- Disposals Acquired/  Assets Accumulated| Carrying Carrying
million) carrying (sold) classified carrying | depreciaton ciation (sold) classified depreciation | amount  amount
amount through as held amount asatl for the through as held asatl asat3l
asatl business forsale asat31 January year business  for sale January December
January combina- December 2011 combina- 2011 2011
2011 tions 2011 tions
Properties 1,256 201 0 0 0 1,457 4 1,306 0 0 0 1,310 1,252 147
2010 (HUF Gross Additions Disposals Acquired/  Assets Gross | Accumulated Depre- Disposals Acquired/  Assets Accumulated| Carrying Carrying
million) carrying (sold) classified carrying | depreciaton ciation (sold) classified depreciation | amount amount
amount through as held amount asatl for the through as held asatl asat3l
asatl business forsale asat31 January year business  for sale January December
January combina- December 2010 combina- 2010 2010
2010 tions 2010 tions
Properties 53,434 172 12 (52,338) 0 1,256 7,806 1 0 (7,803) 0 4 45,628 1,252

The fair value of investment property is HUF 147liom (2010: HUF 1,252 million) based on quartevBluation made by an independent appraiser.

59




Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(21) Intangible assets

2011 Gross Additions Disposals Acquired/  Assets Gross | Accumulated Depre- Disposals Acquired/  Assets Accumulated| Carrying Carrying
HUF carrying (sold) classified carrying | depreciaton ciation (sold) classified depreciation | amount amount
million amount through as held amount asatl for the through as held asatl asat3l
asatl business forsale asat31l January year business for sale January December
January combina- December 2011 combina- 2011 2011
2011 tions 2011 tions
Softwareg 32,684 6,318 2,004 (26) 0 36,972 18,431 5,296 2,004 @) 0 21,716/ 14,253 15,256
Other
intangible
assets 302 5 0 0 0 307 223 8 0 0 0 231 79 76
32,986 6,323 2,004 (26) 0 37,279 18,654 5,304 2,004 (7) 0 21,947) 14,332 15,332
2010 Gross Additions Disposals Acquired/  Assets Gross |Accumulated Depre- Disposals Acquired/  Assets Accumulated| Carrying Carrying
HUF carrying (sold) classified carrying | depreciaton ciation (sold) classified depreciation | amount  amount
million amount through as held amount asatl for the through as held asatl asat3l
asatl business forsale asat31 January year business for sale January December
January combina- December 2010 combina- 2010 2010
2010 tions 2010 tions
Softwares 28,390 4,310 16 0 0 32,684 14,630 3,812 11 0 0 18,431 13,760 14,253
Other
intangible
assets 347 0 45 0 0 302 241 5 23 0 0 223 106 79
28,737 4,310 61 0 0 32,986 14,871 3,817 34 0 0 18,654/ 13,866 14,332

In 2011 HUF 988 million impairment losses were igatised for softwares in the consolidated incomt&stant under other operating expenses (2010: HwHli®n).
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(22)  Goodwill
(HUF million) 2011 2010

Cost

Balance at 1 January 1,672 1,889
Acquisitions through business combinations 0 0
Acquisition of non controlling interest 0 0
Other acquisitions — internally developed 0 0
Effect of movements in exchange rates 0 0
Disposal of subsidiaries 0 (217)

Balance at 31 December 1,672 1,672

Impairment losses

Balance at 1 January 0 0
Impairment loss for the period 0 0
Effect of movements in exchange rates 0 0

Balance at 31 December 0 0

Carrying amounts as at:

At 1 January 1,672 1,889
At 31 December 1,672 1,672

(23) Operating leases

Leases as a lessee

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payabfellows:

(HUF million) 2011 2010
Less than 1 year 7,918 5,625
Between 1 and 5 years 31,67222,430
More than 5 years 0 0

39,590 28,055

The Group has entered into rental contracts inftinen of operating leases. These rental contraas ar
classified as operating leases because the riskiseoieased assets are not transferred to the Glichep
Group has no sublets.

During the year ended 31 December 2011 an amoudtéf 7,918 million was recognised as an expense in
profit or loss in respect of operating leases (2040F 5,625 million)
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(24)  Other assets

(HUF million) 2011 2010

Other tax receivables 12,097 1,469
Cash at money exchange agents 6,8576,070
Receivables from investment activities 14,02628,560
Accruals 3,829 3,860
Inventory 3,146 3,076
Other 7,523 5,176
Less: specific impairment 592 664
Other assets 47,478 48,211

Specific impairment

Balance at 1 January 664 351
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 69 395
Recoveries (54) 3
Effect of foreign currency movements 0 53
Write-offs (87) 0
Change in consolidation group 0 (138)
Balance at 31 December 592 664

Other tax receivables contain bank tax receivaiola fearly repayment option (HUF 9,385 million).

Inventory contains mainly real estate developmémtgrogress HUF 2,028 million in 2011 (2010: HUF
2,221 million) of Raiffeisen Property Lizing andsal project companies’ real estate constructions in
progress HUF 62 million in 2011 (2010: HUF 312 ioifl).Cars repossessed from customers amount to
HUF 443 million in 2011 (2010: HUF 833 million) &aiffeisen Leasing and Raiffeisen Energiaszolgaltat
Kft. Repossessed proprties amount to HUF 578 miliio Raiffeisen Property Leasing (2010: HUF 101
million).
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(25) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(HUF million) 2011 2010
Cost Accrued Unrealised Book value Cost Accrued Unrealised Book value
interest gain/loss interest gain/loss

Derivative instruments held for trading by type

FX swaps 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,693 1,693
FX forwards 0 0 29,622 29,622 0 0 1,958 1,958
Security forwards 0 0 119 119 0 0 308 308
Foreign exchange options 0 0 4,702 4,702 0 0 1,459 1,459
Interest rate derivatives 0 7,460 24,262 31,722 0 9,519 23,507 33,026
Total derivative instruments held for trading 0 7,460 58,705 66,165 0 9,519 28,925 38,444
Derivative instruments held for risk management fases

FX swaps 55,974 (2,344) -4,810 48,820 46,273 (2,284) (943) 43,046
Interest rate derivatives 0 (620) 8,523 7,903 0 1,073 1,745 2,818
Total derivative instruments held for risk managemet purposes 55,974 (2,964) 3,713 56,723] 46,273 (1,211) 802 45,864
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 55,974 4,496 62,418 122,888 46,273 8,308 29,727 84,308
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(26) Deposits from banks

2011 Under 1 year More than 1 year Total
(HUF million) HUF FCY HUF FCY
Resident 47,367 10,947 40,676 6,342 105,332
Non resident 8,726 51,128 1,259 151,625 212,738
56,093 62,075 41,935 157,967 318,070
2010 Under 1 year More than 1 year Total
(HUF million) HUF FCY HUF FCY
Resident 57,922 11,256 40,751 7,819 117,748
Non resident 20,300 198,634 1,370 192,354 412,658
78,222 209,890 42,121 200,173 530,406
(27)  Deposits from non-banks
2011 Under 1 year More than 1 year Total
(HUF million) HUF FCY HUF FCY
Resident 1,042,396 258,079 54,927 6,554 1,361,956
Non resident 26,105 46,194 66 217 72,582
1,068,501 304,273 54,993 6,771 1,434,538
2010 Under 1 year More than 1 year Total
(HUF million) HUF FCY HUF FCY
Resident 930,549 259,854 42,567 6,262 1,239,232
Non resident 27,527 56,244 145 549 84,465
958,076 316,098 42,712 6,811 1,323,697
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(28) Debt securities issued
Reference Interest Par value Firstissuance  Due date Listed Carrying amount  Carrying amount
2011(HUF 2010(HUF
million) million)

RAIFF 2011/A 3m BUBOR + 0.25% 0 2006.10.04 2011.10.04 No 0 6,589
RB KAM KTV fixed 11.5% 0 2009.02.25 2011.02.25 No 0 4,864
RB KAM KTV2 fixed 12.5% 0 2009.04.16 2011.04.16 No 0 12,060
RB KAM KTV3 fixed 10% 0 2009.05.22 2011.05.22 No 0 5,839
RB KAM KTV4 fixed 8.5% 0 2009.08.28 2011.08.30 No 0 5,158
RB KAM KTV5 fixed 8% 0 2009.09.23 2011.09.23 No 0 10,219
RB KAM KTV6 fixed 7.4% 0 2009.12.11 2011.12.12 No 0 10,036
RB KAM KTV7 fixed 7.25% 10,029 2010.02.19 2012.02.20 No 10,653 10,657
RB KAM KTV8 fixed 6.25% 10,000 2010.03.19 2012.03.19 No 10,488 10,491
RB KAM KTV9 fixed 6% 10,000 2010.05.19 2013.05.20 No 10,372 10,372
RB KAM KTV10 fixed 6.50% 4,000 2010.09.30 2012.10.01 No 4,066 4,066
RB KAM KTV11 fixed 6.50% 5,000 2010.11.17 2013.11.18 No 5,040 5,040
RB KAM KTV12 fixed 7.15% 5,000 2011.01.12 2014.01.13 No 5,346 0
RB KAM KTV13 fixed 7.00% 5,000 2011.03.09 2014.03.10 No 5,285 0
RB PB KTV2 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma$%})0 0 2009.11.11 2011.11.11 No 0 5,604
RB PB KTV3 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma%}10 3,000 2010.02.12 2013.02.12 No 2,973 3,186
RB PB KTV4 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma® 8% 0 2010.03.25 2013.03.25 No 0 2,960
RB PB KTV5 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma® 5% 3,734 2010.04.23 2013.04.23 No 3,577 3,158
RB PB KTV6 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m&#8. 3,000 2010.07.30 2012.07.30 No 2,996 2,987
RB PB KTV7 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m#¢8, 3,000 2010.08.13 2012.08.13 No 2,949 2,973
RB PB KTV8 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m&¢8. 10,000 2010.08.30 2013.02.28 No 9,539 9,842
RB PB KTV9 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma%})0 0 2010.12.08 2011.12.08 No 0 1,006
RB PB KTV10 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maso} 3,000 2010.12.15 2015.12.15 No 2,539 2,898
RB PB KTV11 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maSo} 2,000 2011.03.02 2016.03.02 No 1,647 0
RB PB KTV12 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maS}L 5,000 2011.03.09 2013.03.11 No 4,838 0
RB PB KTV13 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m#) 9 3,000 2011.03.09 2013.03.11 No 2,638 0
RB PB KTV14 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maso} 2,000 2011.03.28 2016.03.29 No 1,577 0
RB PB KTV15 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma¥&) 3,000 2011.04.28 2017.04.28 No 2,606 0
RB PB KTV16 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maS)L 3,000 2011.04.29 2014.04.29 No 2,755 0
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Reference Interest Par value Firstissuance  Due date Listed Carrying amount  Carrying amount
2011(HUF 2010(HUF
million) million)

RB PB KTV17 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m@$}1 3,000 2011.05.25 2014.05.26 No 2,659 0
RB TB KTV fixed 7.55% 5,007 2010.05.26 2015.12.30 No 5,611 5,233
RB TB KTV2 fixed 8.35% 3,000 2011.03.23 2016.12.30 No 3,194 0
RE3.70F1408 fixed 3.70% 3,111 2011.08.30 2014.08.29 No 3,150 0
RE4.00F1310 fixed 4.00% 1,245 2011.10.24 2013.10.24 No 1,254 0
RE4.00F1410 fixed 4.00% 1,245 2011.10.10 2014.10.10 No 1,256 0
RE4.00F1411 fixed 4.00% 1,867 2011.11.11 2014.11.11 No 1,877 0
RH09A1708 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (max 9%) 2,000 2011.08.17 2017.08.17 No 1,497 0
RH10A1711 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (max)10% 3,000 2011.11.11 2017.11.13 No 2,479 0
RH10R1407 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (max)10% 5,000 2011.07.01 2014.07.01 No 4,312 0
RH10R1409 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (max)10% 5,000 2011.09.23 2014.09.23 No 4,270 0
RHB8.00F1412 fixed 8.00% 2,000 2011.12.12 2014.12.12 No 2,008 0
RHB8.40TB1612 fixed 8.40% 1,000 2011.09.23 2016.12.30 No 1,023 0
RH8F141222 fixed 8.00% 3,000 2011.12.21 2014.12.22 No 3,006 0
RH9.50TB1612 fixed 9.50% 2,500 2011.10.10 2016.12.30 No 2,553 0
RB KAM EUR fixed 4.75% 0 2009.07.24 2011.01.24 No 0 2,982
RB KAM EUR2 fixed 4.25% 0 2009.08.28 2011.08.30 No 0 5,656
RB KAM EUR3 fixed 3.5% 0 2009.10.09 2011.10.10 No 0 5,619
RB KAM EUR4 fixed 3.25% 6,222 2010.01.27 2012.01.27 No 6,407 5,743
RB KAM EUR5 fixed 2.70% 6,222 2010.04.30 2013.04.30 No 6,319 5,676
Debt securities issued 147,182 144,759 160,914
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Repurchased own debt securities

Reference Interest Par value  Firstissuance Due date Listed Carrying amount  Carrying amount
2011(HUF million) 2010(HUF million)

RAIFF 2011/A 3m BUBOR + 0.25% 0 2006.10.04  2011.10.04 No 0 4,196
RB KAM KTV fixed 11.5% 0 2009.02.25 2011.02.25 No 0 2
RB KAM KTV2 fixed 12.5% 0 2009.04.16 2011.04.16 No 0 21
RB KAM KTV3 fixed 10% 0 2009.05.22 2011.05.22 No 0 12
RB KAM KTV4 fixed 8.5% 0 2009.08.28 2011.08.30 No 0 5
RB KAM KTV5 fixed 8% 0 2009.09.23 2011.09.23 No 0 12
RB KAM KTV6 fixed 7.4% 0 2009.12.11 2011.12.12 No 0 5
RB KAM KTV7 fixed 7.25% 57 2010.02.19 2012.02.20 No 59 46
RB KAM KTV8 fixed 6.25% 26 2010.03.19 2012.03.19 No 27 109
RB KAM KTV9 fixed 6% 21 2010.05.19 2013.05.20 No 21 11
RB KAM KTV10 fixed 6.50% 0 2010.09.30 2012.10.01 No 0 0
RB KAM KTV11 fixed 6.50% 1,864 2010.11.17 2013.11.18 No 2,278 3,221
RB KAM KTV12 fixed 7.15% 24 2011.01.12 2014.01.13 No 24 0
RB KAM KTV13  fixed 7.00% 98 2011.03.09 2014.03.10 No 100 0
RB PB KTV3 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma%})0 146 2010.02.12 2013.02.12 No 148 10
RB PB KTV4 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma® 8% 0 2010.03.25 2013.03.25 No 0 6
RB PB KTV5 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma® 5% 2,242 2010.04.23 2013.04.23 No 2,273 2,527
RB PB KTV6 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m&¢8. 45 2010.07.30 2012.07.30 No 45 0
RB PB KTV7 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m#&¢8. 109 2010.08.13 2012.08.13 No 108 7
RB PB KTV8 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m#&¢8. 252 2010.08.30 2013.02.28 No 245 0
RB PB KTV9 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma$%})0 0 2010.12.08 2011.12.08 No 0 729
RB PB KTV10 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maS%}L 20 2010.12.15 2015.12.15 No 18 836
RB PB KTV11 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maS)L 21 2011.03.02 2016.03.02 No 19 0
RB PB KTV12 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maS)L 344 2011.03.09 2013.03.11 No 341 0
RB PB KTV13 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (m#) 9 219 2011.03.09 2013.03.11 No 218 0
RB PB KTV14 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maS)L 11 2011.03.28 2016.03.29 No 10 0
RB PB KTV15 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (ma¥&) 12 2011.04.28 2017.04.28 No 10 0
RB PB KTV16 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maSo}lL 170 2011.04.29 2014.04.29 No 159 0
RB PB KTV17 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (maSo}lL 235 2011.05.25 2014.05.26 No 226 0
RB TB KTV fixed 7.55% 486 2010.05.26 2015.12.30 No 537 172
RB TB KTV2 fixed 8.35% 9 2011.03.23 2016.12.30 No 8 0
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Carrying amount  Carrying amount

Reference Interest Par value Firstissuance Due date Listed 2011(HUF million) 2010(HUF million)

RE3.70F1408 fixed 3.70% 161 2011.08.30 2014.08.29 No 161 0
RE4.00F1310 fixed 4.00% 0 2011.10.24 2013.10.24 No 0 0
RE4.00F1410 fixed 4.00% 41 2011.10.10 2014.10.10 No 41 0
RE4.00F1411 fixed 4.00% 680 2011.11.11 2014.11.11 No 683 0
RH09A1708 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (max 9%) 469 2011.08.17 2017.08.17 No 465 0
RH10A1711 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (max)10% 2,413 2011.11.11 2017.11.13 No 2,413 0
RH10R1407 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (max)10% 180 2011.07.01 2014.07.01 No 165 0
RH10R1409 indexed to EUR/HUF exchange rate (max)10% 3,840 2011.09.23 2014.09.23 No 3,865 0
RH8.00F1412 fixed 8.00% 0 2011.12.12 2014.12.12 No 0 0
RH8.40TB1612 fixed 8.40% 2 2011.09.23 2016.12.30 No 2 0
RH8F141222 fixed 8.00% 1,150 2011.12.21 2014.12.22 No 1,152 0
RH9.50TB1612 fixed 9.50% 1 2011.10.10 2016.12.30 No 1 0
RB KAM EUR fixed 4.75% 0 2009.07.24 2011.01.24 No 0 4
RB KAM EUR4 fixed 3.25% 271 2010.01.27 2012.01.27 No 277 0
RB KAM EUR5 fixed 2.70% 2,314 2010.04.30 2013.04.30 No 2,338 2,676
Repurchased own debt securities 17,933 18,437 14,607
Net debt securities issued 129,249 126,322 146,307
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(29) Subordinated liabilities

2011
Lender Borrowed Amount Original Interest Due date Carrying
on in currency amount

original (HUF

currency million)

(million)
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.03.25 20 EUR 2.43% 2017.09.25 6,263
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.03.31 20 EUR 2.45% 2018.03.30 6,262
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.27 30 EUR 4.82% 2020.06.30 9,336
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.30 20 EUR 2.34% 2017.09.29 6,223
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.30 20 EUR 2.34% 2017.09.29 6,223
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.30 10 EUR 2.39% 2018.12.31 3,112
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.30 25 EUR 2.34% 2018.06.29 7,779
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.09.30 25 EUR 2.35% 2018.09.28 7,825
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2009.02.27 20 EUR 8.38% 2019.02.27 6,272
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.01.02 14 HUF 7.96% 2012.01.04 14
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.01.02 9 HUF 8.46% 2012.04.04 9
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.02.01 10 HUF 8.91% 2012.02.01 10
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.02.01 9 HUF 8.41% 2012.02.01 9
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.03.01 5 HUF 7.98% 2012.03.01 5
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.04.02 13 HUF 8.18% 2012.04.02 13
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit Zrt. 2002.05.02 10 HUF 7.98% 2012.05.02 10
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.05.02 2 HUF 7.48% 2012.05.02 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.06.03 12 HUF 8.04% 2012.06.04 12
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.07.01 17 HUF 8.47% 2012.07.02 17
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.08.01 5 HUF 8.92% 2012.08.01 5
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.09.02 12 HUF 8.82% 2012.09.03 12
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2002.10.01 3 HUF 8.65% 2012.10.01 3
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit Zrt. 2002.12.02 6 HUF 8.38% 2012.12.03 6
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit Zrt. 2003.02.03 12 HUF 7.66% 2013.02.04 12
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2003.05.05 3 HUF 7.66% 2013.05.06 3
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2003.07.01 1 HUF 7.18% 2013.07.01 1
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2003.08.01 2 HUF 7.91% 2013.08.01 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2003.09.01 3 HUF 8.38% 2013.09.02 3
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2003.10.01 5 HUF 8.33% 2013.10.01 5
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2003.11.03 6 HUF 8.13% 2013.11.04 6
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2004.02.02 8 HUF 9.15% 2014.02.03 8
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2004.03.01 2 HUF 9.69% 2014.03.03 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2004.04.01 1 HUF 9.65% 2014.04.01 1
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2004.05.03 6 HUF 8.91% 2014.05.05 6
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2004.07.01 2 HUF 9.53% 2014.07.01 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosito Zrt. 2004.08.02 5 HUF 9.78% 2014.08.04 5
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosité Zrt. 2004.09.03 2 HUF 9,35% 2014.09.01 2
Subordinated liabilities 59,480
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2010
Lender Borrowed  Amount in Original Interest  Due date Carrying
on original currency amount
currency (HUF
(million) million

Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.03.25 20 EUR 1.84% 2017.09.25 5,602
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.03.31 20 EUR 1.84% 2018.03.30 5,601
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.27 30 EUR 4.42%  2020.06.30 8,364
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.30 20 EUR 1.94%  2017.09.29 5,576
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.30 10 EUR 1.99%  2018.12.31 2,788
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.30 20 EUR 1.94%  2017.09.29 5,576
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.06.30 25 EUR 1.94% 2018.06.29 6,969
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2008.09.30 25 EUR 1.74% 2018.09.28 7,000
Raiffeisen Bank International AG 2009.02.27 20 EUR 7.94% 2019.02.27 5,615
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.06.01 8 HUF 9.29%  2011.06.11 8
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.07.02 2 HUF 8.96%  2011.07.04 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.07.02 12 HUF 8.46%  2011.07.04 12
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.08.01 13 HUF 8.50%  2011.08.01 13
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.08.01 30 HUF 9.00%  2011.08.01 30
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.09.03 39 HUF 8.40%  2011.09.05 39
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.09.03 65 HUF 8.90%  2011.09.05 65
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.10.01 59 HUF 9.00%  2011.10.03 59
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.10.01 16 HUF 8.50%  2011.10.03 16
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.11.05 43 HUF 9.21%  2011.11.07 43
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.11.05 6 HUF 8.71%  2011.11.07 6
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.12.03 11 HUF 8.57%  2011.12.05 11
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2001.12.03 38 HUF 9.07%  2011.12.05 38
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.01.02 9 HUF 8.46%  2012.04.04 9
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.01.02 14 HUF 7.96%  2012.01.04 14
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.02.01 9 HUF 8.41%  2012.02.01 9
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.02.01 10 HUF 8.91%  2012.02.01 10
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.03.01 5 HUF 7.98%  2012.03.01 5
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.04.02 13 HUF 8.18%  2012.04.02 13
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.05.02 10 HUF 7.98%  2012.05.02 10
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.05.02 2 HUF 7.48%  2012.05.02 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.06.03 12 HUF 8.04%  2012.06.04 12
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.07.01 16 HUF 8.47%  2012.07.02 16
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.08.01 5 HUF 8.92%  2012.08.01 5
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.09.02 12 HUF 8.82%  2012.09.03 12
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.10.01 3 HUF 8.65%  2012.10.01 3
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2002.12.02 6 HUF 8.38%  2012.12.03 6
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2003.02.03 12 HUF 7.66%  2013.02.04 12
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2003.05.05 3 HUF 7.66%  2013.05.06 3
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2003.07.01 1 HUF 7.18%  2013.07.01 1
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2003.08.01 2 HUF 7.91%  2013.08.01 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2003.09.01 3 HUF 8.38%  2013.09.02 3
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2003.10.01 5 HUF 8.33%  2013.10.01 5
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2003.11.03 6 HUF 8.13%  2013.11.04 6
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2004.02.02 8 HUF 9.15%  2014.02.03 8
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2004.03.01 2 HUF 9.69%  2014.03.03 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2004.04.01 1 HUF 9.65%  2014.04.01 1
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2004.05.03 6 HUF 8.91%  2014.05.05 6
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2004.07.01 2 HUF 9.53%  2014.07.01 2
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2004.08.02 5 HUF 9.78%  2014.08.04 5
AEGON Mo. Altalanos Biztosit6 Zrt. 2004.09.03 2 HUF 9.35%  2014.09.01 2
Subordinated liabilities 53,617
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(30)

(31)

(32)

The above debts are direct, unconditional and wmedcobligations of the Group, and are subordinated

the claims of the Group's depositors and otheritonesd

Other liabilities
(HUF million) 2011 2010
Other taxes payable 2,586 2,023
Giro, postal clearing accounts, cash in transit 89,7 5,408
Suppliers 3,045 2,698
Payables relating to investment activities 31,075,772
Accruals 5,361 8,809
Other 4,921 4,118
Other liabilities 56,768 68,828

Provisions

The following table shows the changes in the pioxisfor commitments and contingencies as at 31

December 2011 and 2010, respectively:

(HUFE million)

2011 2010

At beginning of year

8,878 5,479

Provisions made during the year
Release in provisions
Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Effect of revaluation
Unwinding of discount
Change in consolidation

10,365 6,683
1,210 (3,439)
5906 0
(4,696(8,438)
480 107

0 0

(24) 47

At end of year

20,909 8,878

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sabnd discontinued operations

At the end of 2009, the Group has decided to $1P4 of Euro Green, but the sale has not been eekdi
31 December 2011. In 2010, the Group decided thefk€lean Energy and WPSS as well. Management

expects these entities to be sold in 2012.

The table below shows the assets and liabilitidd fax sale as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December

2010.

(HUFE million)

Assets classified as held for sale
Net loans

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Current tax assets

Other assets

2011 2010

38 38
12,58%3,266
1,258 1,258
0 2
238 387

14,119 14,951

Liabilities classified as held for sale
Current tax liabilities
Other liabilities

0 5
156 165
156 170
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Profit/(loss) of discontinued operation

Discontinued operation is a component of the Gribigp either been disposed of or is classified 4@ foe
sale.

The Group had no material discontinued operatiorZ)iL1.

(33) Share capital

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the equity streaitithe Group consisted of the following classés

shares:
2011 (HUF million)
Shareholder Type of share  Number of shares % HUF mlibn
Raiffeisen-RBHU Holding GmbH  Ordinary 16,502,300100.00 165,023
Raiffeisen-RBHU Holding GmbH  Preference 0 0.00 0
Total 165,023
2010 (HUF million)
Shareholder Type of share Number of shares % HUF million
Raiffeisen-RBHU Holding GmbH  Ordinary 5,909,914 100.00 59,099
Raiffeisen-RBHU Holding GmbH  Preference 0 0.00 0
Total 59,099

The Group’s authorized, issued, called up and fpdlid share capital comprises ordinary shares aviplar
value of HUF 10,000.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group hetdeagury shares in its portfolio.

During December 2011 the Bank received HUF 105,8fdion capital increase (2010: HUF 13,970
million).

During 2011 and 2010 there were no dividend payment

(34) Other reserves
General risk reserve

Local legislation allows the Group to set asidesaegal risk reserve up to 1.25% of risk-weightezsbtssand
off-balance sheet exposures against inherent siplostires in addition to those losses which haven bee
specifically identified and those potential loss@sich experience indicates are present in the playtbf
loans and advances.

The Group had transferred 1.25% of risk-weightestesof the Bank into general risk reserve untl&an
2009 the percent of general risk reserve was retfieen 1.25% to 0.75% and in 2011 to 0%. Such
amounts are treated as an expense for statutopoges and are tax deductible; for IFRS purposey, th
form part of retained earnings, net of relateddfigcts (see Note 36).

The Group had a reserve of HUF 13,173 million a3labecember 2010. This reserve was released ih 201

to cover the losses from early repayment optioalized based on the"4point of the Act CXXI/2011
(about modification of certain laws about home ectibn).
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General reserve

In accordance with section 75 of the No. CXII Hurig@a Act of 1996, a general reserve equal to 10%ebf
income after tax is required to be set aside. be®e in the general reserve are treated as apgtiopsi of
retained earnings, as calculated under Hungarieousating rules and thus are not charged againstiec

The balance of the general reserve was nil at 3e@ber 2011 (2010: HUF 5,691 million). The General
Reserve was released for the loss of the Bank1i.20

Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve includes the cumulative net ghan the fair value of available-for-sale invesitseuntil
the investment is derecognized or impaired.

(35) Non-controlling interest

In 2011 non controlling interest decreased dueo$s ffor the year, and the consolidation group chdng
Global Thermal is now controlled by the Group.

In 2010 non controlling interest decreased du®ss for the year, and as the consolidation groamgéd,
the Group does not control several entities thaewentrolled in 2009.

(36) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attribudblthe following:

(HUF million) 2011 2010
Deferred tax assets 8,639 3,069
Deferred tax liabilities 120 181
Net deferred taxes 8,519 2,888
2011 2010
Assets Liabilities Net| Assets Liabilities Net
Loans 16 2,619 (2,603) 0 2,374 (2,374)
Impairment losses 4,185 0 4,185 3,042 0 3,042
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 0 17 a7 0 17 a7)
Available for sale securities 3,418 0 3,418 1,161 0 1,161
Investments in associated undertakings 1,032 0 1,032 933 0 933
Investments in unlisted securities 3 0 3 3 0 3
Property, plant and equipment 171 530 (359) 171 531 (360)
Investment property 23 0 23 43 0 43
Intangible assets 0 0 0 0 17 17)
Goodwill 0 161 (161) 0 161 (161)
Provisions 543 0 543 61 1,998 (1,937)
Other items 0 56 (56) 116 55 61
Probably useable tax loss carry-forwards 2,511 0 2,511 2,511 0 2,511
Net tax assets (liabilities) 11,902 3,383 8,519] 8,041 5,153 2,888

(37) Commitments and contingencies

At any time, the Group has outstanding commitmenesxtend credit. These commitments take the fdrm o
approved loan limits and overdraft facilities.

The Group provides guarantees and letters of ctedguarantee the performance of customers to third
parties.
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The contractual amounts of commitments and contingiabilities are set out in the following table b
category. The amounts reflected in the table fonmitments assume that amounts are fully committéed.
amounts for guarantees and letters of credit reptethe maximum accounting loss that would be
recognized at the balance sheet date if the cquanties failed to perform as contracted.

(HUF million) 2011 2010

Nominal value Nominal value

Contingencies

Import letters of credit 2,840 2,763
Export letters of credit 0 66
Guarantees issued 146,877 170,951
Other contingencies (including litigation) 1,055 1,310
Total contingencies 150,772 175,090
Commitments

Unutilized loan facilities 139,699 98,784
Unutilized overdraft facilities 105,250 93,117
Unutilized guarantee frames 75,861 70,014
Total commitments 320,810 261,915

N
=
=

Repurchase agreements

(HUFE million)

Genuine repurchase agreements as a borrower
(repo agreement)

Liabilities to bank 17,482 22,055
Liabilities to customers 19,630 120

37,112 22,175

2010

Genuine repurchase agreements as a lender

(repo agreement)

Claims on banks 7,142 20,990
Claims on customers 4,335 4,538

11,477 25,528

These commitments and contingent liabilities arposed to off-balance sheet credit risk because only
organization fees and provision for probable lossesrecognized in the consolidated statemennahtial
position until the commitments are fulfilled or éxgp Many of these off-balance items will expiretivaut
being drawn down in whole or in part. Therefores #mounts do not represent expected future casis.flo

The Group has a rental commitment for its maincefiin Budapest amounting HUF 2,224 million in 2011
for 2012 (in 2010 rental commitment for 2011 amednio HUF 1,723 million).

(38) Use of estimates and judgements

Management discusses with the Group Supervisory®Bite development, selection and disclosure of the
Group’s critical accounting policies and estimatas] the application of these policies and estimate

These disclosures supplement the commentary ondialarisk management (see Note 4).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Allowances for credit losses

Assets measured at amortised cost are tested f@iriment on a basis described in the accountinigypol
(see Note 3).

The specific counterparty component of the totivednces for impairment applies to financial assessed
individually for impairment and is based upon masragnt’'s best estimate of the present value ofuhed
cash flows that are expected to be received. imashg these cash flows, management makes judgsmen
about the counterparty’s financial situation anel itlet realisable value of any underlying collateral

Collectively assessed impairment allowances coraitlosses inherent in portfolios of loans andaates
with similar credit risk characteristics when thes@bjective evidence to suggest that they corntapaired
loans and advances but the individual impaired stexannot yet be identified. In assessing the need f
collective loss allowances, management considertorfa such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations and economic factors. In order tonase the required allowance, assumptions are rttade
define the way inherent losses are modelled andetermine the required input parameters, based on
historical experience and current economic congktioThe accuracy of the allowances depends on the
estimates of future cash flows for specific coupdety allowances and the model assumptions and
parameters used in determining collective allowanéemonthly recalculation of the portfolio-basedmh

loss provisions is to be performed to ensure taimodel provides the best estimate of provisions.

Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assand liabilities for which there is no observabiarket
price requires the use of valuation techniqueseaeribed in accounting policy. For financial instents
that are traded infrequently and have little pricansparency, fair value is less objective, andiireg
varying degrees of judgement depending on liqujdincentration, uncertainty of market factorscipg
assumptions and other risks affecting the sperrifirument. See also “Valuation of financial instients”
below.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Grpis accounting policies

Critical accounting judgements made in applying@meup’s accounting policies include:

Valuation of financial instruments, fair value hierarchy

The Group’s accounting policy on fair value meaments is discussed in Note 3 h).
The Group measures fair value using the followirggdrchy of methods:

« Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active marf@tglentical assets and liabilities;

« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includéithiw Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
the liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) iadirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that i@ based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The Group has no such financial instruments of whfair value is determined using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The table below analyses financial instrumentsiedmt fair value, by valuation method:
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2011 (HUF million) Fair Amortized Fair value  Trading Total Fair value Levell Level2 Level3
value cost through carrying
through profit and amount
equity loss

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 0 98,285 0 0 98,285 98,285 0 0 0
Placements with banks 0 99,777 0 0 99,777 99,777 0 0 0
Net loans 0 1,522,572 3,666 0 1,526,238 1,535,887 0 3,666 0
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 0 0 13,290 56,878 70,168 70,168 11,043 59,125 0
Available for sale securities 253,408 0 0 0 253,408 253,408 105,050 148,358 0
Held to maturity securities 0 143,186 0 0 143,186 143,186 0 0 0
Investments in associated undertakings 0 0 142 0 142 142 0 0 142
Investments in unlisted securities 120 0 0 0 120 120 0 0 120
Property, plant and equipment 0 21,021 0 0 21,021 21,021 0 0 0
Investment property 0 147 0 0 147 147 0 0 0
Intangible assets 0 15,332 0 0 15,332 15,332 0 0 0
Goodwill 0 1,672 0 0 1,672 1,672 0 0 0
Current tax assets 0 539 0 0 539 539 0 0 0
Deferred tax assets 0 8,639 0 0 8,639 8,639 0 0 0
Other assets 0 47,478 0 0 47,478 47,478 0 0 0
Assets classified as held for sale 0 14,119 0 0 14,119 14,119 0 0 0

Total assets 253,528 1,972,767 17,098 56,878 2,300,271 2,309,920 116,093 211,149 262

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Deposits from banks 0 318,070 0 0 318,070 315,056 0 0 0
Deposits from non-banks 0 1,429,872 4,666 0 1,434,538 1,435,436 0 4,666 0
Debt securities issued 0 57,744 68,578 0 126,322 125,724 0 68,578 0
Subordinated liabilities 0 59,480 0 0 59,480 59,481 0 0 0
Financial liabilities at fair value through profdit loss 0 0 81,366 41,522 122,888 122,888 119 122,769 0
Current tax liabilities 0 116 0 0 116 116 0 0 0
Deferred tax liabilities 0 120 0 0 120 120 0 0 0
Provisions 0 20,909 0 0 20,909 20,909 0 0 0
Other liabilities 0 56,768 0 0 56,768 56,769 0 0 0
Liabilities classified as held for sale 0 156 0 0 156 156 0 0 0
Total liabilities 0 1,943,235 154,610 41,522 2,139,367 2,136,655 119 196,013 0
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2011 (HUF million) Fair Amortized Fair Trading Total Fair value Levell Level2 Level3

value cost value carrying

through through amount

equity profit
and loss

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 0 162,400 0 0 162,400 162,400 0 0 0
Ordinary shares 0 165,023 0 0 165,023 165,023 0 0 0
Preference shares 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Issued capital 0 165,023 0 0 165,023 165,023 0 0 0
Retained earnings 0 12,864 0 0 12,864 12,864 0 0 0
Statutory reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-distributable reserve 0 323 0 0 323 323 0 0 0
Fair value reserve 0 (15,810) 0 0 (15,810) (15,810) 0 0 0
Non controlling interest 0 (1,496) 0 0 (1,496) (1,496) 0 0 0
Total equity 0 160,904 0 0 160,904 160,904 0 0 0
Total liahilities, non controlling interest and shaeholder's equity 0 2,104,139 154,610 41,522 2,300,271 2,297,559 119 196,013 0
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2010 (HUF million) Fair Amortized  Fair value  Trading Total Fairvalue Levell  Level2 Level3
value cost through carrying
through profit and amount
equity loss

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 0 59,149 0 0 59,149 59,149 0 0 0
Placements with banks 0 82,575 0 0 82,575 82,575 0 0 0
Net loans 0 1,573,457 41,363 0 1,614,820 1,621,569 0 41,363 0
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 0 0 11,451 53,946 65,397 65,397 18,773 46,624 0
Available for sale securities 296,953 0 0 0 296,953 296,953 130,380 166,573 0
Held to maturity securities 0 143,989 0 0 143,989 143,989 0 0 0
Investments in associated undertakings 0 0 48 0 48 48 0 0 48
Investments in unlisted securities 108 0 0 0 108 108 0 0 108
Property, plant and equipment 0 19,555 0 0 19,555 19,555 0 0 0
Investment property 0 1,252 0 0 1,252 1,252 0 0 0
Intangible assets 0 14,332 0 0 14,332 14,332 0 0 0
Goodwill 0 1,672 0 0 1,672 1,672 0 0 0
Current tax assets 0 1,827 0 0 1,827 1,827 0 0 0
Deferred tax assets 0 3,069 0 0 3,069 3,069 0 0 0
Other assets 0 48,211 0 0 48,211 48,211 0 0 0
Assets classified as held for sale 0 14,951 0 0 14,951 14,951 0 0 0

Total assets 297,061 1,964,039 52,862 53,946 2,367,908 2,374,657 149,153 254,560 156

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Deposits from banks 0 530,406 0 0 530,406 528,275 0 0
Deposits from non-banks 0 1,318,894 4,803 0 1,323,697 1,323,685 0 4,803
Debt securities issued 0 118,303 28,004 0 146,307 146,245 0 28,004
Subordinated liabilities 0 53,617 0 0 53,617 53,623 0 0

Financial liabilities at fair value through profdit loss 0 0 46,839 37,469 84,308 84,308 308 84,000

OO0 OO O o oo o o o

Current tax liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Deferred tax liabilities 0 181 0 0 181 181 0 0
Provisions 0 8,878 0 0 8,878 8,878 0 0
Other liabilities 0 68,828 0 0 68,828 68,828 0 0
Liabilities classified as held for sale 0 170 0 0 170 170 0 0
Total liabilities 0 2,099,277 79,646 37,469 2,216,392 2,214,193 308 116,807
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2010 (HUF million) Fair Amortized  Fair value Trading Total Fair value Levell Level2 Level3

value cost through carrying

through profit and amount

equity loss

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 0 151,264 0 0 151,264 151,264 0 0 0
Ordinary shares 0 59,099 0 0 59,099 59,099 0 0 0
Preference shares 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Issued capital 0 59,099 0 0 59,099 59,099 0 0 0
Retained earnings 0 77,964 0 0 77,964 77,964 0 0 0
Statutory reserves 0 18,864 0 0 18,864 18,864 0 0 0
Non-distributable reserve 0 500 0 0 500 500 0 0 0
Fair value reserve 0 (5,163) 0 0 (5,163) (5,163) 0 0 0
Non controlling interest 0 252 0 0 252 252 0 0 0
Total equity 0 151,516 0 0 151,516 151,516 0 0 0
Total liahilities, non controlling interest and shaeholder's equity 0 2,250,793 79,646 37,469 2,367,908 2,365,709 308 116,807 0

There have been no significant transfers betweeellleand Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
The valuation methods of financial instrumentsiearat fair value are also presented in this tatliéare commented in Note 39.
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(39) Accounting classifications and fair values

The estimated fair values disclosed above are dat®d to approximate values at which these instnisne
could be exchanged in an arm’s length transactitowever, many of the financial instruments have no
active market and therefore, fair values are basedstimates using net present value and otheatiaiu
techniques (see Note 3 h) and Note 38), which igmficantly affected by the assumptions used am th
amount and timing of the estimated future cash dland discount rates. In many cases, it would ot b
possible to realise immediately the estimatedviaiues given the size of the portfolios measured.

The methods and, when a valuation technique is, ikecassumptions applied in determining fair valoé
financial instruments were as follows:

i) Cash and cash equivalents, Placements with banks

Due to their short term nature, the carrying amswft Cash and cash equivalents and Placements with
banks are a reasonable approximation of theiwdire.

i) Loans and advances to customers

For determining the fair value of these assetsjréutinticipated cash flows are discounted to thedsent
value using current market interest rates.

iii) Investments in securities

Quoted market prices are used for exchange-tragledtises and listed debt instruments. The faiugabf
Hungarian government bonds classified as tradingailable-for-sale are measured according to the
reference price index announced by the Governmefit Management Agency. The fair value of the
securities is the market price quoted on the stathange (where such price exists). If no quotécepr
exists, the fair value is the discounted presehtevaf the contractual cash-flows at the revaluadate.

The fair value of municipal bonds is calculatednwitscounted cash-flow method. The yield curvesl dse
discounting purposes are shifted using the Bas@pSspreads representing the country risk. The eddabd
repayment option is valued as well, using the Bi&ckoles option pricing formula based approach.

iv) Derivatives
The fair value of exchange-traded derivatives ésghoted price.

The fair value of single currency swaps and interate futures are calculated on the basis of disizal,
anticipated future cash flows. In doing so, the @pr@applies the market rates applicable for the heimz
maturity of the financial instruments.

Cross currency swaps are valued based on discowatsguiflow method. Revaluation yield curves are
shifted using the Basis Swap spreads charactefastibe cross currency swap markets and repreggtiie
country risk.

The fair value of forward exchange transactionsoisiputed on the basis of current forward rates kNia
market value of plain vanilla and exotic optionglaculated with modified Black-Scholes model. &se of
exotic options, which do not have closed-form favaluation iteration technics are used.

For hedging the exposures to changes in fair vafuome loans, the Group has entered into inteatst
swap transactions. The fair value of these hedgansl is the discounted present value of the futash-
flows at balance sheet date. These loans are neshaufair value in the statement of financial poasi.

v) Deposits from banks, Deposits from customers

Fair value of Deposits from banks and Deposits foustomers are determined using discounted cagis,flo

applying current rates offered for deposits of Emremaining maturities. The fair value of a depos
repayable on demand is assumed to be the amouatblpagn demand at the balance sheet date.
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vi) Debt securities issued, Subordinated liabilities
Fair value of debt securities issued is determimgdg quoted market prices at the balance sheetvaatre

available, or by reference to quoted market prifssimilar instruments. Fair value of subordinated
liabilities is calculated by discounting the futwash flows.

(40) Related parties
The Group’s related parties include the parent @yp associates, joint ventures, key management
personnel, close family members of key managemergopnel and entities which are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced, or for whicsignificant voting power is held by key managetmen
personnel or their close family members.
Transactions with related parties

Related parties have transacted with the Groumduhie period as follows:

2011 (HUFE million)

Related parties Parent  Consolidated Associates Key
company  subsidiaries Management
and its Personnel
group
Assets 144,338 90 665 4,492 10
Placements with banks 84,469 0 0 0
Loans and advances to customers 43,959 88,769 4,492 10
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 15,881 0 0 0
Available for sale securities 0 0 0 0
Other assets 29 1,896 0 0
Liabilities 252,096 7,499 549 135
Financial liabilities at fair value through prodit loss 72,855 0 0 0
Deposits from banks 98,501 0 0 0
Deposits from non-banks 1,603 7,201 549 135
Debt securities issued 0 0 0 0
Subordinated liabilities 59,297 0 0 0
Other liabilities 19,840 298 0 0
Income statement (12,202) (6,051) 249 (782)
Interest income 36,962 3,851 226 2
Interest expense (20,896) (313) (6) 3
Net fee and commission income (195) 1,381 29 0
Other operating income (25,829) 1,264 0 0
Personnel expenses 0 0 0 (787)
Other operating expenses (2,244) (12,234) 0 0
Contingencies and commitments 6,446 74,060 4,329 0
Undrawn commitments to extend credit 5,179 73,682 4,329 0
Guarantees 1,267 378 0 0
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2010 (HUF million)

Related parties Parent  Consolidated Associates Key
company subsidiaries Management
and its Personnel
group
Assets 111,581 105,857 3,967 126
Placements with banks 65,096 0 0 0
Loans and advances to customers 37,424 103,884 3,967 126
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 8,118 0 0 0
Available for sale securities 0 0 0 0
Other assets 943 1,973 0 0
Liabilities 260,021 6,868 574 88
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss 55,265 0 0 0
Deposits from banks 146,050 0 0 0
Deposits from non-banks 5,054 6,747 574 88
Debt securities issued 0 0 0 0
Subordinated liabilities 53,093 0 0 0
Other liabilities 559 121 0 0
Income statement (365) 2,313 129 (692)
Interest income 25,872 4,466 88 8
Interest expense (16,183) (224) (6) 17)
Net fee and commission income (191) 1,129 a7 2
Other operating income (8,119) 1,627 0 0
Personnel expenses 0 0 0 (685)
Other operating expenses (1,744) (4,685) 0 0
Contingencies and commitments 4,749 91,142 0 0
Undrawn commitments to extend credit 364 90,764 0 0
Guarantees 4,385 378 0 0

The above transactions were made in the ordinanyseoof business and on substantially the samesterm
and conditions, including interest rates and séguas for third parties.

No impairment losses have been recorded againshded outstanding during the period with related

parties, and no specific allowance has been madenfmairment losses on balances with related magte
the period end.

(41) Group entities

The subsidiaries and associates of the Group amdattivities are as follows:
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Company

Ownership Ownership Residence of the Company
ratio 2011 ratio 2010

Brief description of actities

Subsidiaries

AFFOREST Agrarenergetikai Kft.

BUTAR Gazdasagi Szolgaltato Kift.

CLEAN ENERGY Szolgaltat6 és TerndeKft.
Deko-Plastic Mianyagipari Kft.

EURO GREEN ENERGY Fejleszés Szolgaltato Kit.
Global Thermal Szolgaltato Kit.

Gydri-Kert Agrarenergetikai Kft.

Kawa Energetika Kft.

Késmark utca 11. Ingatlanhasznositd Kft.*
Raiffeisen Aut6 Lizing Kft.

Raiffeisen Befektetési Alapkezekrt.

Raiffeisen BiztositaskozvetiKit.

Raiffeisen Energiaszolgaltato Kft.

Raiffeisen Eszkoz Lizing Zrt.

Raiffeisen EszkozértékesiKft.

Raiffeisen Gazdaséagi Szolgaltat6 Zrt.
Raiffeisen Ingatlan Uzemelte€s Szolgaltato Kit.
Raiffeisen Lizing Zrt.

Raiffeisen Property Lizing Zrt.

RB Kereskedhaz Kereskedelmi Kift.

SCT Beruhéazas Ingatlanfejle§zs Ingatlanhasznosito Kift.
SCT Karasz utca Ingatlanke#eft.

SCT Tundérkert Kft.*

SCTAI Angol iskola Ingatlanfejlesités Ingatlanhasznosit6é Kft. 81.00%

SCTB Ingatlanfejles#tés Ingatlanhasznositd Kit.
SCTJ Ingatlanfejlesétés Ingatlanhasznosité Kit.
SCTS Ingatlanfejlesétés Ingatlanhasznosité Kift.
SPC Vagyonkez8IKft.*

SZELET Energiatermélés Szolgaltatd Kift.

T+T 2003 Ingatlanhasznosité Kit.

W.P.S.S. Energetikai Kft.

20.00% 20.00% 4130 Derecske, Dobé I. u. 6.
100.00%100.00% 2030 Erd, Budai ut 22.
50.00% 50.00% 1087 Bp., Hungaria krt. 40-44.
a) 100.00% 2030 Erd, Budai Gt 22.
42.50% 42.50% 1087 Bp., Hungaria krt. 40-44.

74.67% 0.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
25.00%
30.50% 30.50% 1087 Bp., Hungaria krt. 40-44.

100.009200.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.

50.00% 50.00% 1087 Bp., Hungaria krt. 40-44.
100.00% 100.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
100.00%  99.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.

50.00% 50.00% 1087 Bp., Hungaria krt. 40-44.
50.00% 50.00% 1087 Bp., Hungéaria krt. 40-44.
50.00% 50.00% 1087 Bp., Hungaria krt. 40-44.
100.009200.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
100.00% 100.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
50.00% 50.00% 1087 Bp., Hungaria krt. 40-44.
100.00% 100.00% 1087 Bp., Hungéaria krt. 40-44.
100.00% 100.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
78.33% 78.33% 1124 Bp., Csorsz utca 49-51.
100.00% 100.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
100.00% 100.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
81.00% 1124 Bp., CsoOrsz utca 49-51.
100.00%100.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
73.87% 73.00% 1124 Bp., Csorsz utca 49-51.
80.65% 80.00% 1124 Bp., Csorsz utca 49-51.
100.00% 100.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
50.00% 50.00% 9022 Gyr, Lukacs S. u. 7.
100.00%100.00% 1054 Bp., Akadémia u. 6.
50.00%
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50.00% 1087 Bp., Hungaria krt. 40-44.

Sylviculture produttio
Activities of collection agées and credit bureaus
Electricity prodocti

Manufacture of other plagtisducts

Electricity prodocti

Buying and selling of awal estate

25.00% 8051 Sarkeresztes, Jozsef A. u. Bylviculture production

Steam and air camaiing supply

Buying and selling of awal estate
Sale of cars anltligotor vehicles

Fund management activities

Activities of insuranceaiy and brokers
Activities of holdicompanies

Financial leasing

Sale of cars anidtligotor vehicles

Other professional, sdier#tnd technical activities n.e.c.
Development of buildingjects
Financial leasing

Financial leasing

Wholesale of metals anthhoges
Development of buiigirojects
Management of real estata fee or contract basis
Buying and selling of awal estate
Development of bugigirojects

Buying and selling of awal estate
Buying and sellingwih real estate
Development of bugigirojects

Buying and selling of awal estate

Electricity production

Development of buildingjects
Electricity prodocti



Raiffeisen Bank Zrt.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Ownership Ownership

Company ratio 2011 ratio 2010 Residence of the Company Brief description of actities
Associates

Middle Outlet Ingatlanfejlesétés Ingatlanhasznosito Kift. b) 40.67% 2030 Erd, Budai Gt 22. Buying and selling of owalrestate
New Outlet Center Ingatlanfejle$zés Ingatlanhasznosito Kft. b) 40.67% 2030 Erd, Budai Gt 22. Buying and selling of owalrestate
Upper Land Ingatlanforgalmazé és Ingatlanhaszndgtto b) 40.67% 2030 Erd, Budai Gt 22. Buying and selling of owalrestate
NOC Kift. 40.67% b) 1124 Bp., Csorsz utca 49-51. Buying and selling of own real estate

a) Deko-Plastic Kft. has been sold to Advanced Dedaaystem Ldt on the"5August 2011.

b) The three companies merged into a new entity@GN.).

*) On 31 December 2011, Késmark utca 11. Ingatlanhasito Kft. and SPC Vagyonkedélft. merged into SCT Tundérkert Kft.
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The management is committed to sell the Group'sesireEuro Green Energy Fejleézts Szolgéltato
Kft, CLEAN ENERGY Szolgaltaté és TerndeKft és W.P.S.S. Energetikai Kft. The sale is expéddo
be completed within one year.

(42) Funds management

The Group manages 1 close-ended (2010: 1) and @3-@pded (2010: 24) investment funds via Raiffeisen
Befektetési AlapkezélZrt., a fully owned and consolidated subsidiargwever, as the funds themselves
are not controlled by the Group, they are not chadated. For funds management services providethby
Group, funds should pay certain fees and commidbiahis presented as ,Net fee and commission ietom
(see Note 7). In 2011 and 2010, transactions \wighfinds themselves were as follows:

HUF million 2011 2010
Managed funds 170,948 160,187
Open-ended funds 109,391 94,678
Close-ended funds 61,557 65,509
Net fee and commission income from funds 2,249 2,002
Deposits from funds 85,742 54333
Interest expense on deposits from funds 4,414 1,720

(43) Segment information

The following segment information has been prepaneaiccordance with IFRS 8, “Operating Segments,”
which defines requirements for the disclosure péficial information of an entity’s operating segiseit
follows the “management approach”, which requinespntation of the segments on the basis of tleenalt
reports about components of the entity which agelegly reviewed by the chief operating decisionkera

in order to allocate resources to a segment arabsess its performance. The Group’s risk and KEtes
return are affected predominantly by differencestsnproducts and services, so segment informaton
presented in respect of the Group’s business segmen

The following summary describes the operation itheaf the Group’s reportable segments:

Retail and private segment the private banking segment provides a wide rasfginancial services to
customers. It mainly comprises lending and depaging activities. The Group’s retail banking segmne
also provides credit and bank card facilities anetstment services to customers.

Corporate segment within corporate banking the Group provides cogpons and institutions with a wide
range of financial products and services. As wslltraditional lending and deposit taking activitiése
segment provides project and structured financdymts and syndicated loans.

Bank and treasury segment the Group provides banks with a wide range o#riitial products and
services; as well as traditional lending and deptadiing activities. All kinds of investment actigs
(investment advice, brokerage services, derivataging and other investment services) are alsviged.

Other segment it contains financial services to governmentsalanunicipalities, social institutions, and

residual items which can not be directly allocatedbusiness segments (mainly general administration
expenses) are included in this category.
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2011 (HUF million)

Corporate  Retail/Private  Bank/treasury  Other Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 98,285 0 98,285
Placements with banks 0 0 99,777 0 99,777
Loans 1,059,918 633,599 0 82,657 1,776,174
Less: loss value on loans 141,191 107,001 0 1,744 249,936
Net loans 918,727 526,598 0 80,913 1,526,238
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 19,300 3,906 38,033 8,929 70,168
Available for sale securities 5,720 0 99,767 147,921 253,408
Held to maturity securities 11,156 0 0 132,030 143,186
Investments in associated undertakings 142 0 0 0 142
Investments in unlisted securities 120 0 0 0 120
Property, plant and equipment 224 0 0 20,797 21,021
Investment property 147 0 0 0 147
Intangible assets 0 0 0 15,332 15,332
Goodwill 0 0 0 1,672 1,672
Current tax assets 23 0 0 516 539
Deferred tax assets 83 0 0 8,556 8,639
Other assets 11,118 777 8,877 26,706 47,478
Assets classified as held for sale 12,860 0 0 1,259 14,119
Total assets 979,620 531,281 344,739 444,631 2,300,271
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposits from banks 0 0 269,888 48,182 318,070
Deposits from non-banks 718,595 570,188 552 145,203 1,434,538
Debt securities issued 0 145,720 (19,398) 0 126,322
Subordinated liabilities 183 0 59,297 0 59,480
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
loss 2,860 0 120,220 (292) 122,888
Current tax liabilities 44 0 0 72 116
Deferred tax liabilities 104 0 0 16 120
Provisions 12,150 6,950 6 1,803 20,909
Other liabilities 4,869 6,943 25,448 19,508 56,768
Liabilities classified as held for sale 156 0 0 0 156
Total liabilities 738,961 729,801 456,013 214,592 2,139,367
Equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent 0 0 0 162,400 162,400

Ordinary shares 0 0 0 165,023 165,023
Issued capital 0 0 0 165,023 165,023
Retained earnings 0 0 0 12,864 12,864
Statutory reserves 0 0 0 0 0
Non-distributable reserve 0 0 0 323 323
Fair value reserve 0 0 0 (15,810) (15,810)
Non controlling interest 0 0 0 (1,496) (1,496)
Total equity 0 0 0 160,904 160,904
Total liabilities, non controlling interest and
shareholder's equity 738,961 729,801 456,013 375,496 2,300,271
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2011 (HUF million)

Corporate Retail/Private  Bank/treasury  Other Total
INCOME STATEMENT
Interest income 67,246 48,408 12,075 20,439 148,168
Interest expense 28,017 22,506 26,489 12,676 89,688
Fee and commission income 9,176 16,215 0 3,841 29,232
Fee and commission expenses 3,110 4,907 13 153 8,183
Dividend income 29 0 0 0 29
Net trading income (1,685) 0 7,165 (51) 5,429
Net income from derivatives held for risk
management 0 0 0 37,030 37,030
Other operating income 2,328 3 6,769 (4,746) 4,354
Impairment losses 63,773 31,346 520 10,223 105,862
Other information
Capital expenditure 1,282 3,802 254 2,273 7,611
Depreciation and amortization 2,849 3,923 312 4,040 11,124
2010 (HUF million)
Corporate Retail/Private Bank/treasury  Other Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0 43,624 15,525 59,149
Placements with banks 0 0 82,575 0 82,575
Loans 1,030,982 674,750 0 60,137 1,765,869
Less: loss value on loans 91,909 58,614 0 526 151,049
Net loans 939,073 616,136 0 59611 1,614,820
Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo 15,322 3,200 11,077 35,798 65,397
Available for sale securities 5,111 0 114,870 176,972 296,953
Held to maturity securities 1,180 0 0 142,809 143,989
Investments in associated undertakings 48 0 0 0 48
Investments in unlisted securities 96 0 0 12 108
Property, plant and equipment 973 0 12 18,570 19,555
Investment property 1,252 0 0 0 1,252
Intangible assets 3 0 0 14,329 14,332
Goodwill 0 0 0 1,672 1,672
Current tax assets 0 0 0 1,827 1,827
Deferred tax assets 0 0 0 3,069 3,069
Other assets 8,485 2,356 2,638 34,732 48,211
Assets classified as held for sale 13,642 0 0 1,309 14,951
Total assets 985,185 621,692 254,796 506,235 2,367,908
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposits from banks 0 0 487,393 43,013 530,406
Deposits from non-banks 706,249 485,669 799 130,980 1,323,697
Debt securities issued 0 153,285 (14,603) 7,625 146,307
Subordinated liabilities 524 0 53,093 0 53,617
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
loss 1,443 0 18,958 63,907 84,308
Current tax liabilities 0 0 0 0 0
Deferred tax liabilities 0 0 0 181 181
Provisions 7,124 825 6 923 8,878
Other liabilities 5,567 6,324 17,119 39,818 68,828
Liabilities classified as held for sale 66 0 0 104 170
Total liabilities 720,973 646,103 562,765 286,551 2,216,392
Equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent 0 0 0 151,264 151,264

Ordinary shares 0 0 0 59,099 59,099
Issued capital 0 0 0 59,099 59,099
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2010 (HUFE million)

Corporate Retail/Private Bank/treasury  Other Total
Retained earnings 0 0 0 77,964 77,964
Statutory reserves 0 0 0 18,864 18,864
Non-distributable reserve 0 0 0 500 500
Fair value reserve 0 0 0 (5,163) (5,163)
Non controlling interest 0 0 0 252 252
Total equity 0 0 0 151,516 151,516
Total liabilities, non controlling interest and
shareholder's equity 720,973 646,103 562,765 438,067 2,367,908
INCOME STATEMENT
Interest income 64,896 56,714 5,459 25,521 152,590
Interest expense 22,737 22,979 23,231 13,163 82,110
Fee and commission income 11,163 16,769 0 1,770 29,702
Fee and commission expenses 3,342 5,266 52 163 8,823
Dividend income 27 0 0 0 27
Net trading income (385) 0 12,091 (392) 11,314
Net income from derivatives held for risk
management 0 0 0 25,007 25,007
Other operating income 4,282 3 (3,381) 7,354 8,258
Impairment losses 37,980 19,385 0 253 57,618
Other information
Capital expenditure 2,322 2,390 37 1,745 6,494
Depreciation and amortization 1,233 2,921 275 3,284 7,713

(44)

Measurement of segment profit or loss

Segment reporting under IFRS 8 requires a presentatf the segment results based on management
reporting methods with reconciliation between theuits of the business segments and the consdlidate
financial statements. The information provided d@bsach segment is based on the internal reportstabo
segment profit or loss, assets and other informatiich are regularly reviewed by the chief opemgti
decision maker.

Events after the balance sheet date

The total loss from early repayment option was H31F284 million. Hereof the realised loss at yead en
amounted to HUF 15,568 million, and an addition&)FH9,811 million individual impairment loss was
recognised. When the actually realised total loas defined on the 29th of February 2012, HUF 5,905
million provision was recognised, in order to shthe most accurate picture in the financial statdmen
These losses are presented under other operafiegses on a cumulative basis.

In 2012, the Bank has sold HUF 30 billion held-tatority securities. The sales of Hungarian govemme
bonds were not subject to the tainting provisioesause they were justified by the credit rating digrade
of Hungary which meant a significant deteriorationthe issuer’s creditworthiness. This event does n
adjust the financial statements.
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